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>L uf]ljGb nfn ;+3O{Ho", g]kfnsf] k|ltli7t cf}Bf]lus 
Pj+ Joj;flos ;d"x lqj]0fL u|'k;Fu ;DalGwt x'g'x'G5 . 
lqj]0fL u|'k d'n'ssf] Joj;flos If]qx? h:t}M l;d]G6 
pBf]u, lrof aufg, xfO8«f]kfj/, s[lif pBd, a}+lsË 
If]q nufot cfoft lgof{t Joj;fodf ;+nUg /x]sf] 
5 . sDkgL :yfkgfsf] z'?sf] dxTjk"0f{ ;dodf pxfFn] 
sDkgLsf] k|aGw ;~rfnssf] lhDd]jf/L ;DxfNg' ePsf] 
lyof] .

>L sdn]z s'df/ cu|jfnHo" :jtGq ;~rfnssf] ?kdf 
;~rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ul//xg' ePsf] 5 . pxfF 
pBf]u Joj;fosf If]qdf nfdf] ;dob]lv ;+nUg /xFb} 
g]kfn r]Da/ ckm sd;{sf] pkfWoIfsf] ?kdf lglh If]qsf] 
ljsf;df ;d]t lqmofl;n /xb} cfpg' ePsf] 5 . xfn 
pxfF gful/s nufgL sf]ifsf] ;~rfns ;d]t x'g'x'G5 . 
ljutdf pxfFn] /fli6«o aLdf ;+:yfgsf] ;~rfnssf] ?kdf 
;d]t of]ubfg k'¥ofpg' ePsf] lyof] .

>L k|sfz d'Gb8fHo" ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgLx?sf] 
tkm{af6 ;~rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ul//xg' 
ePsf] 5 . pxfF Ps o"jf pBdL Joj;foL x'g'x'G5 
/ ljleGg pTkfbgd'ns Pj+ ;]jf If]qdf 
;~rfnssf] ?kdf ;d]t lqmoflzn x'g'x'G5 . 
pxfFn] df]/Ë Jofkf/ ;+3sf] cWoIf tyf g]kfn 
h'6 pBf]u ;+3sf] k|yd pkfWoIfsf] ?kdf lghL 
If]qsf] ljsf;df ;d]t ;lqmo of]ubfg k'¥ofpFb} 
cfpg' ePsf] 5 .

>L /fd cjtf/ cu|jfnHo" ;+:yfks z]o/wgLx?sf] 
tkm{af6 ;~rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ul//xg' 
ePsf] 5 . k]zfn] pxfF Ps OlGhlgo/ x'g'x'G5 .  
g]kfn ;/sf/sf] ;]jfaf6 lga[Q x'g'eGbf cufl8 pxfFn] 
g]kfnsf] ljleGg l;+rfO of]hgfdf Joj:yfkssf] ?kdf 
sfd ug'{ ePsf] lyof] . Joj;foLsf] ?kdf ljleGg 
Joj;fodf ;lqmo pxfF ;dfh ;]jf;Fu ;DalGwt 
;+:yfx?df ;d]t cfj4 x'g'x'G5 .
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>L ljdn k|;fb 9sfnHo" ;j{;fwf/0f 
z]o/wgLx?sf] ;d'xaf6 ;+rfns ;ldltdf 
k|ltlglwTj ul//xg' ePsf] 5 . pxfF k]zfut 
?kdf clwjStf x'g'x'G5 / sfg"gsf If]qdf 
cg'ejL JolQmTjsf] ?kdf kl/lrt x'g'x'G5 .

>L ljj]s cu|jfnHo" ;+:yfks z]o/wgLx?sf] 
tkm{af6 ;~rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ul//xg' 
ePsf] 5 . pxfF Ps o"jf pBdL Joj;foLsf] ?kdf 
ljleGg pTkfbg d'ns pBf]u, cfoft lgof{t tyf  
;]jf Joj;fosf] If]qdf lqmoflzn x'g'x'G5 . pxfF j:t' 
tyf ;]jf Jofkf/sf] ahf/Ls/0fsf ljifodf cg'ejL 
tyf bIf dflgg'x'G5 .

jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&%÷@)&^

>LdtL kf?n 9sfnHo" ;+:yfks ;d'xaf6 ;+rfns 
;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ul//xg' ePsf] 5 . pxfF k]zfut 
?kdf dfgj ;+zfwg k/fdz{bftfsf] ?kdf lqmoflzn 
/xL dfgj ;+zfwg tyf j[lQ ljsf; ;DaGwL sfo{ 
ug]{ k|ltli7t ;+:yfdf dxfk|jGwssf] ?kdf lqmoflzn 
x'g'x'G5 .
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g]g]kfn nfOkmåf/f u|fxssf] cfjZostfnfO{ dWogh/ u/L ljleGg aLdf of]hgfx? 

ahf/df NofOPsf] 5 . u|fxssf] cfjZostfx¿sf] lj:t[t ljZn]if0f u/L sDkgLn] 

u|fxsx¿sf] ;Gt'li6sf ;fy} u|fxs;Fu bL3{sfnLg ;DaGw /xg] lsl;dn] aLdf 

of]hgfx? tof/ ub{5 . xfd|f] aLdf of]hgfx? d"ntM ;fjlws, DofbL, clu|d e'QmfgL 

tyf cfhLjg hLjg aLdf /x]sf 5g\ .
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gf}nf] hLjg ;Dj[l4 aLdf of]hgf

l;ldt cjl3 ;Ddsf] nflu aLdfz'Ns e'Qmflg u/L k"/f aLdf cjl3 ;Ddsf] nflu hf]lvd jxg ug]{ l;ldt e'QmfgL 
wglkmtf{ ;falws hLjg aLdf [Limited Payment Anticipated (Money-Back) g} gf}nf] hLjg ;Dj[l4 aLdf of]hgf aLdf 
of]hgf xf] . 
o; of]hgfdf !^ jif{ nfu]kl5sf] aLdfsf] jflif{sf]T;j b]lv b'3{6gf÷ckfË÷czQm, aLdfz'Ns 5'6 ;'ljwf yk ug{ ;lsg] 5 
eg] !* jif{ pd]/ k'u]sf JolStn] 3fts /f]u ;'lj3f k|fKt ug{ ;lsg] 5 . oL P]lR5s ;'ljwfx? d"n aLdfn]vsf] aLdfÍ 
a/fa/ jf clwstd\ ?= !,)),)),))) ;Dd lng ;lsg] . 

u k|j]z pd]/ M !^ jif{{ b]lv ^) jif{
u aLdf ;dflKtdf clwstd pd]/ M &) jif{
u aLdf cjlw M !) jif{ b]lv @% jif{
u C0f tyf ;dk{0f ;'ljwf M ;dfj]z /x]sf]
u aLdfz'Ns e'Qmflg cjlw M 

  

 
u Go"gtd aLdfÍ /sd M ?= %),)))÷– -krf; xhf/ dfq_
u clwstd aLdfÍ /sd M cfo ;|f]tsf] cfwf/df hlt klg ug{ ;lsg] .
u P]lR5s ;'ljwf M b'3{6gf nfe, aLdfz'Ns 5'6 ;'ljwf / czQm ;'ljwf ;dfj]z ePsf] . o; P]lR5s ;'ljwf d"n 

aLdfn]vsf] aLdfÍ a/fa/ jf clwstd\ ?= !,)),)),))) ;Dd lng ;lsg] .

u aLdfn]v rfn' /xL aLdf cjlw ;dfKtL ldlt ;Dd aLldt hLljt /x]df aLdfn]v cGtu{t aLdfÍsf] lglZrt k|ltzt 
/sd ls:tfdf e'QmfgL lbO{g'sf ;fy} cflh{t af]g; aLdfn]v cjlw ;dflKtdf Psd'i6 lbOg] 5 . o;/L e'QmfgL ubf{ 
cf+lzs cjlw e'QmfgL jfkt k|bfg u/]sf] /sd s§f ul/g] 5}g .

u aLdfn]v rfn' /xL aLdf ;dflKt ldlt cufj} aLldtsf] d[To" ePdf aLdfÍ /sd / aLdfn]vn] cfh{g u/]sf] 
lgodfg';f/sf] af]g; /sd Psd'i7 e'QmfgL lbOg]5 t/ Psn aLdfz'Ns e'QmfgL t/Lsfdf aLdfÍsf] @=% u'0ffn] x'g] 
/sd / cflh{t af]g; Psd'i7 e'QmfgL] lbO{g]5 . o;/L e'QmfgL ubf{ cjlw e'QmfgL afkt k|bfg u/]sf] /sd s§f ul/g] 
5}g 
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DEVELOPING
STRATEGIES 

Strategic issues 

Swot Analysis 

Industry and Market analysis 

Customer insights 

Mission, Values, Visions, 

Core Competences, 

Strategies, Objective, 

Forecast PERFORMANCE 
MEASUREMENT 

ANALYSING
PRESENT CONTEXT

FORMULATING 
PLANS

Setting priorities 

Developing organisational goals 

Key performance indicators 

Resources management

Monitoring 

Reviewing 

Corrective actions 

Measuring

DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE VALUE
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As on Asad 31, 2076 [ 16 July 2019]

Particulars Notes Current Year  Previous Year 

Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment 1  74,328,937  62,453,361 

Intangible Assets 2  2,216,617  2,589,538 

Capital Work in Progress  -  - 

Investment Properties 3  238,794,637  242,686,029 

Deferred Tax Assets 4  113,311,806  81,854,425 

Financial Assets 5

 Held to Maturity Financial Assets 5.1  48,982,998,828  44,300,882,485 

 Loans & Receivables 5.2  12,583,092,622  8,940,141,396 

 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through P/L 5.3  4,257,761,645  3,029,826,834 

Reinsurance Assets- Ceded  -  - 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 6  1,711,099,590  1,164,047,831 

Insurance Receivables 7  108,045,329  1,056,350,569 

Other Receivables 8  21,680,315  28,407,162 

Other Financial Assets 9  1,593,432,192  1,072,720,158 

Other Assets 10  81,815,626  36,348,346 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 11  8,050,479,882  2,862,016,067 

Total Assets  77,819,058,027  62,880,324,200 

Liabilities & Equity

Gross Insurance Contract Liability 12  66,117,535,210  51,445,903,464 

Employee Benefit Obligation 13  127,682,437  51,745,147 

Deferred Income Tax Liability 4  -  - 

Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 6  -  - 

Other Financial Liabilities 14  170,072,885  100,240,125 

Other Liabilities 15  820,883,747  577,696,374 

Insurance Payable 16  1,182,985,451  793,996,890 

Other Provision 17  142,354,468  137,592,595 

Total Liabilities  68,561,514,198  53,107,174,595 

Equity

Share Capital 18  5,496,160,810  4,396,928,648 

Other Equity 19  3,761,383,019  5,376,220,958 

Total shareholder's equity  9,257,543,829  9,773,149,606 

Total Equity  9,257,543,829  9,773,149,606 

Total equity and liabilities  77,819,058,027  62,880,324,200 

Amount in NRs.

Date: 2077/09/07
Address: Kathmandu

Santosh Prasai
Act. Chief Executive Officer

Roshan Dawadi
Chief (Finance & Account)

Govind Lal Sanghai
Chairman

Directors
Ram Avatar Agrawal

Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal
Prakash Mundara

Vivek Agrawal
Bimal Prasad Dhakal

Parul Dhakal

Joshi & Bhandary
Chartered Accountants
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the period year ended Asad 31, 2076 [ Covering period 17 July 2018 - 16 July 2019]

Amount in NRs.

Particulars  Notes Current Year  Previous Year 

Gross Premium Earned 20  23,111,018,980  16,569,739,178 

Less : Premium Ceded to reinsurers 20  (291,436,267)  (183,294,911)

Premium Net of Reinsurance  22,819,582,713  16,386,444,267 

Net Change in Provision for unearned income  -  - 

Net Earned premiums  22,819,582,713  16,386,444,267 

Investment Income 21  6,405,672,340  5,493,104,117 

Fee & Commission Income 22  336,388,985  157,769,623 

Net Gain on Fair Value Changes 23  178,501,651  (395,826,695)

Net Realised Gains on Derecognition of FVTPL 23  577,447  13,765,970 

Net Gain on Derecognition of FV at amortized cost  -  - 

Other Income  6,921,140,424  5,268,813,015 

Total Income  29,740,723,137  21,655,257,282 

Gross Benefits and Claims Paid 24  8,096,198,370  6,321,241,185 

Less : Claim ceded to Reinsurers 24  (103,135,814)  (81,733,222)

Net Benefits and Claims Paid  7,993,062,556  6,239,507,963 

Gross change in contract liabilities 12  14,671,631,746  9,994,503,217 

Fee and Commission expenses 25  2,832,694,688  1,841,661,524 

Depreciation and Amortization expenses 26  23,399,835  20,199,512 

Employee Benefits Expenses 27  578,300,882  443,136,760 

Other Expenses 28  2,005,921,105  1,309,314,221 

Finance Cost  -  - 

Non Operating Income/(Expenses) 23  246,867  - 

Total Expenditure  28,105,257,679  19,848,323,196 

Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax  1,635,465,458  1,806,934,086 

Income Tax Expenses: 4  - 

Current Tax Expenses  327,957,927  451,733,521 

Deferred Tax income/(Expenses)  28,796,432  98,641,477 

Net Profit/(Loss) for the year  1,336,303,963  1,453,842,041 

Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per ordinary share (NRs)  20  22 

Diluted earnings per ordinary share ( NRs)  20  22 

Date: 2077/09/07
Address: Kathmandu

Santosh Prasai
Act. Chief Executive Officer

Roshan Dawadi
Chief (Finance & Account)

Govind Lal Sanghai
Chairman

Directors
Ram Avatar Agrawal

Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal
Prakash Mundara

Vivek Agrawal
Bimal Prasad Dhakal

Parul Dhakal

Joshi & Bhandary
Chartered Accountants
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended Asad 31, 2076 [16 July 2019]

Particulars Note Current Year Previous Year

Profit for the year transferred for SOPL  1,336,303,963  1,453,842,041 

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Net fair value (losses)/gains on financial assets  -  - 

Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations  (32,749,696.00)  - 

Deferred Tax implication  8,187,424.00  - 

Items that are or/may be reclassified subsequently to profit 
or loss

Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation  -  - 

Re-measurement gains/(Loss) on defined benefit plan  22,105,902  (19,048,642)

Deferred Tax implication of actuarial gain / (loss)  (5,526,476)  4,762,161 

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax  (7,982,846)  (14,286,482)

Total comprehensive income for the year  1,328,321,118  1,439,555,560 

Amount in NRs.

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of Financial Statements

Date: 2077/09/07
Address: Kathmandu

Santosh Prasai
Act. Chief Executive Officer

Roshan Dawadi
Chief (Finance & Account)

Govind Lal Sanghai
Chairman

Directors
Ram Avatar Agrawal

Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal
Prakash Mundara

Vivek Agrawal
Bimal Prasad Dhakal

Parul Dhakal

Joshi & Bhandary
Chartered Accountants
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

For the period Srawan 01, 2075 to Asad 31, 2076 [July 17, 2018 to July 16, 2019]

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cash flow from operating activities:
Cash Received
Premium Income  23,111,018,980  16,170,759,396 
Late Fee Income  272,097,424  139,807,072 
Re-insurance Income  -  - 
Re-lnsurance Commission Income  64,291,561  17,962,487 
Other Direct Income  -  - 
Claimed recovery from Re-insurer  71,112,518  56,283,278 
Cash Paid
Re-insurance Premium Paid  (267,640,979)  (200,147,889)
Re-insurance commission payment  -  - 
Agent commission payment  (2,377,137,446)  (1,742,189,932)
Medical examination fee payment  (14,858,060)  (9,203,943)
Death claim payment  (496,650,829)  (467,442,484)
Maturity claim payment  (1,935,943,820)  (1,504,838,484)
Partial-maturity claim payment  (4,355,068,093)  (2,745,299,543)
Surrender value claim payment  (1,287,568,578)  (782,771,985)
Other claim payment  (20,967,050)  (5,125,212)
Service fee payment  (158,760,864)  (120,074,672)
Other expenditure payment  (2,201,931,585)  (1,398,698,856)
Gratuity Expenses  (10,643,794)  (19,048,642)
Staff Bonus Expenses  (125,033,201)  (99,558,491)
 Income Tax Paid  (793,493,097)  (741,837,476)
 (lncrease)/Decrease in current assets  (155,406,495)  17,528,341 
 lncrease/(Decrease) in current liabilities  320,020,724  141,084,464 
 Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities (1)  9,637,437,315  6,707,187,430 
 Cash flow from Investing Activities: 
 (lncrease) Decrease in fixed assets  (31,011,099)  (13,876,864)
 (lncrease) Decrease in investment in government guaranteed securities.  281,158,625  4,542,439 
 (lncrease)Decrease in investment in fixed deposit of bank and financial institution.  (4,758,300,000)  (6,960,000,000)
 (Increase) Decrease in investment in other deposit of bank and financial institution.  -  - 
 (Increase)/Decrease in Equity Share Investments  (1,049,433,160)  (1,089,044,708)
 (increase) Decrease in investment in preference share/debenture  (204,974,968)  - 
 (lncrease)Decrease in other investment  0  (24,343,033)
 (lncrease)Decrease in loans against insurance Policy  (3,470,087,232)  (2,526,035,979)
 (lncrease) Decrease in other loans and advances  (175,983,176)  112,048,350 
 Interest Income From Investment  5,188,578,213  4,909,238,404 
 Dividend Received  37,666,132  29,839,094 
 Rental income  43,660,058  41,147,372 
 Interest On Loan  722,514,448  512,433,218 
 Others Indirect lncome  494,903  13,924,582 
 Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities (2)  (3,415,717,255)  (4,990,127,125)
 Cash flow from Financing Activities 
 Amount received from Shares  -  - 
 (lncrease) Decrease in outstanding debt.  -  - 
 Increase/Decrease in short term debt  -  - 
 Interest Paid on Loan and Debt  -  - 
 Dividend paid  (1,033,256,248)  (883,297,008)
 Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities (3)  (1,033,256,248)  (883,297,008)
 Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3]  5,188,463,812  833,763,297 
 Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year  2,862,016,067  2,028,252,768 
 Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of the year  8,050,479,882  2,862,016,067 
 Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents 
 Cash In Hand  1,827,788,994  424,495,815 
 Balance With Banks  6,222,690,888  2,437,520,252 

Notes:
Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using Direct Method in Accordance with NAS 7 [Statement of Cash Flows]
The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of Financial Statements

Date: 2077/09/07
Address: Kathmandu

Santosh Prasai
Act. Chief Executive Officer

Roshan Dawadi
Chief (Finance & Account)

Govind Lal Sanghai
Chairman

Directors
Ram Avatar Agrawal

Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal
Prakash Mundara

Vivek Agrawal
Bimal Prasad Dhakal

Parul Dhakal

Joshi & Bhandary
Chartered Accountants
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Particulars Leasehold 
Properties

Computer & 
Accessories

Vehicle Furniture & 
Fixture

Machinery Equipment 
& others

Total Property Plant 
& Equipment(PPE)

Cost

As on Shrawan 01, 
2075

10,614,853  26,344,923  35,507,520 19,230,702  89,331,931 18,264,925  199,294,854 

Addition during the year

 Acquisition  7,667,615  5,839,652  4,622,400  8,397,115  -  5,023,039  31,549,820 

 Capitalization

Disposal during the year  (1,951,800)  (2,353,979)  (120,457)  (4,426,236)

Adjustment/Revaluation  - 

Balance as on Asar end 
2076

 
18,282,467 

 32,184,575  38,178,120 27,627,817  86,977,952 23,167,507  226,418,438 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

As on Shrawan 01,2075  5,542,795  21,510,199  15,155,341  16,736,058  62,917,239  14,979,861  136,841,493 

Depreciation charge for 
the year

 3,656,493  2,751,331  4,649,492  1,253,208  4,669,436  1,963,462  18,943,422 

Impairment for the year

Disposals  -  -  (1,237,142)  -  (2,137,741)  (120,457)  (3,495,340)

Adjustment

As on Asar end 2076  9,199,288  24,261,530  18,367,616 17,989,266  65,448,934 16,822,866  152,289,576 

 Net book value of Property Plant and Equipment including intangible assets 

As on Asar end 2075  5,072,058  4,963,624  20,352,179  2,494,644  26,414,692  3,156,164  62,453,361 

As on Asar end 2076  9,083,179  7,923,045  19,810,504  9,638,551  21,529,018  6,344,641  74,328,937 

1.1 Depreciation to PPE is provided on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives as defined by the management.
1.2 The Depreciation of PPE is shown under Note 26 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses together with depreciation of 
Investment Property & Intangible Assets.

2.1 The useful life of intangible assets other than developed internally, relating to contract relationships are determined by 
contract type and lie within individual contract. Intangible assets include fully amortized assets still in use. 
2.2 The Amortization of Intangible Assets is shown under Note 26 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses together with 
depreciation of PPE & Investment Property.

Particulars
Intangible Assets Total Intangible 

Assets Software  Licenses  Goodwill 
Cost

As on Shrawan 01, 2075  6,258,891  6,258,891 
Addition during the year

 Acquisition  192,100  192,100 

 Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 2076  6,450,991  -  -  6,450,991 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
As on Shrawan 01,2075  3,669,353  3,669,353 
Depreciation charge for the 
year

 565,021  565,021 

Impairment for the year  - 

Disposals  -  - 

Adjustment  - 

As on Asar end 2076  4,234,374  -  -  4,234,374 
Net book value of Intangible 
Assets
As on Asar end 2075  2,589,538  -  -  2,589,538 
As on Asar end 2076  2,216,617  -  -  2,216,617 

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

For the period year ended Asad 31, 2076 [Covering period 17 July 2018 - 16 July 2019]

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Note 1 

Note 2 

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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Particulars
Investment Property Total Investment 

PropertyFreehold land Building

Cost

As on Shrawan 01, 2075  82,814,700  213,698,412  296,513,112 

Addition during the year

 Acquisition

 Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 2076  82,814,700  213,698,412  296,513,112 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

As on Shrawan 01,2075  53,827,083  53,827,083 

Depreciation charge for the year  3,891,392  3,891,392 

Impairment for the year

Disposals  -  - 

Adjustment

As on Asar end 2076  57,718,475  57,718,475 

Net book value of Investment 
Property

As on Asar end 2075  82,814,700  159,871,329  242,686,029 

As on Asar end 2076  82,814,700  155,979,937  238,794,637 

3.1 Depreciation to Investment Property namely "Nepal Life Building" is provided on a straight line basis over the estimated 
useful lives as defined by the management.
3.2 The Depreciation of Investment property is shown under Note 26 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses together with 
depreciation of PPE & Intangible Assets.
3.2 The fair value of the investment property namely "Nepal Life Building" is Rs. 889,849,000 as per the valuation provided by the 
independent valuator.

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

For the period year ended Asad 31, 2076 [ Covering period 17 July 2018 - 16 July 2019]
Note 3 

Amount in NRs.
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Note 4.1

Assets/Liabilities Carrying Amount Tax Base (Taxable)/Deductible 
Temp. Differences

As on 16-July-2019

WDV of Property, Plant and Equipment  232,525,491  209,778,938  (22,746,553)

Investment in Shares  4,257,761,645  4,348,820,174  91,058,529 

Provision for loss of inv. (Agent Loan)  10,425,980  -  10,425,980 

Investment in G Bonds (at premium only)  54,219,828  299,436,720  245,216,892 

Provision for leave encashment  51,217,586  -  51,217,586 

Provision for Gratuity  76,464,851  -  76,464,851 

Provision for doubtful debt  4,467,623  -  4,467,623 

Staff Home Loan  36,669,640  93,478,000  56,808,360 

Deferred Interest (Staff Home Loan)  59,666,043  -  (59,666,043)

Current year tax losses (Tax credits)  -  -  - 

Total  4,783,418,688  4,951,513,832  453,247,224 

Net deductible temporary differences (A)  453,247,224 

Deferred tax assets (A*25%)  113,311,806.08 

Previous year balance defered tax assets.  81,854,425.30 

Closing Deferred Tax Assets  113,311,806.08 

Origination /(Reversal) during the year  31,457,380.77 

Deferred Tax implication of actuarial gain / (loss)  (2,660,948.50)

Net Deferred Tax income/ (expense) recognised in profit 
or loss

 28,796,432.27 

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
INCOME TAX EXPENSES

For the period year ended Asad 31, 2076 [ Covering period 17 July 2018 - 16 July 2019]

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
CALCULATION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

for FY 2075/76 [FY 2018/19 ]

Note 4 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

Current Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses based on profit for current year  321,947,086  451,733,521 

Adjustment for prior years under/ (over) Provision  6,010,841  - 

 327,957,927  451,733,521 

Deferred Tax Expenses

Origination and reversal of temporary differences  28,796,432  98,641,477 

Changes in tax rates  -  - 

recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses  -  - 

 28,796,432  98,641,477 

Total Income Tax Expenses  356,754,359  550,374,998 

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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Note 5

Group of investments Sub-
note

Current In-
vestments

Non- Current 
Investments

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year 

5.1 Held to Maturity Financial Assets

Financial assets at amortized value - Bonds with 
additional cost

5.1.1  -  -  54,219,828  261,124,485 

Financial assets at carrying value - Bonds 
without additional cost

5.1.2  -  -  1,770,479,000  1,639,758,000 

Fixed Deposits 5.1.3  -  -  47,158,300,000  42,400,000,000 

5.2 Loans and Receivables

Unsecured Considered Good

Loans and Advances to Policy Holders 5.2.1  -  -  11,889,862,983  8,419,775,751 

Loans and Advances to Agents  -  -  507,985,242  370,408,945 

Loans and Advances to Staffs 5.2.2  -  -  185,244,397  149,956,700 

Other loans

Unsecured Considered Doubtful

Loans and Advances to Policy Holders  -  -  -  - 

Loans and Advances to Agent  -  -  10,425,980  7,306,799 

Loans and Advances to Staff

Other loans

Provision For Loss On Agent Loan  -  -  (10,425,980)  (7,306,799)

Total  -  -  12,583,092,622  8,940,141,396 

5.3 Financial Assets at Fair value through PL 4,257,761,645 3,029,826,834  -  - 

5.2 (a) For the Policy Loan, Agents Loans & Staff Loans, the management has carried out objective evidence test 
for each of the Financial Assets to test for impairment. No impairment was determined for Policy Loans and Staff 
Loans whereas Loans to Agent has been impaired and measured at carrying amount after deduction of impair-
ment charge.
5.2 (b) The fair value of loans and receivables have been estimated by comparing current market interest rate for 
similar instruments with the rates offered when the loans were first recognized, together with appropriate market 
credit adjustments except for loans and receivables considered current of which fair value approximates the carry-
ing value. Staff loans are discounted at the rate applied on policy loans to external parties.

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Amount in NRs.
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5.1 Held to Maturity Financial Assets

5.1.1 Financial assets at amortized value - Bonds with additional cost

Particulars Current 
Year

Previous Year

6.5% Gov. Development Bond 2075  -  22,588,595 

6.5% Gov. Development Bond 2075 "Ka"  -  183,536,068 

6.5% Gov. Development Bond 2076 "Ka"  44,861,857  45,545,819 

8.5% Citizen Bank Debenture 2077  9,357,971  9,454,003 

Total  54,219,828  261,124,485 

5.1.2 Financial assets at carrying value - Bonds without additional cost

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

8.5% Citizens Bond 2077  94,006,000  94,006,000 

8% Nepal Investment Bank Debenture 2077  100,000,000  100,000,000 

8% Himalayan Bank Debenture 2077  100,000,000  100,000,000 

8% EBL Debenture 2079  80,000,000  80,000,000 

8% Ebl Debenture 2078  110,770,000  110,770,000 

8% Bank Of Kathmandu Debenture 2076  50,000,000  50,000,000 

8% BoK debenture 2079  104,980,000  104,980,000 

11% Siddartha Bank Debenture 2075  -  79,867,000 

8% Siddhartha Bank Debenture 2076  50,000,000  50,000,000 

7.5 Sbl Debenture 2078  114,092,000  114,092,000 

8%Laxmi Bank Debenture 2076  86,000,000  86,000,000 

12.5% Nepal Sbi Bank Bond 2078  -  15,843,000 

8%Nepal SBI Debenture 2079  60,000,000  60,000,000 

7% Sanima Debenture 2079  169,850,000  169,850,000 

Development Bond 2075 "Kha"  -  74,350,000 

Development Bond 2077  250,000,000  250,000,000 

Development Bond 2081  100,000,000  100,000,000 

10.25% Global IME Bank Debenture 2080/81  50,255,000  - 

10.25% NB Bank Debenture 2085  50,000,000  - 

10.50 Nepal investment Bond 2082  184,683,000  - 

Nepal SBI(12.5%NepalSBI Debenture2078)  15,843,000  - 

Total  1,770,479,000  1,639,758,000 

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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5.1.3 Held to Maturity Financial Assets ( Fixed Deposit)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Bank Of Kathmandu Ltd  2,870,000,000  2,750,000,000 

Century Commercial Bank Limited  224,500,000  450,000,000 

Citizens Bank International Limited  5,302,200,000  3,390,000,000 

Civil Bank Limited  415,100,000  700,000,000 

Deva Bikas Bank Ltd  479,400,000  - 

Everest Bank Ltd  4,125,500,000  2,950,000,000 

Gandaki Bikash Bank Ltd  58,500,000  - 

Garima Bikas Bank Ltd  175,000,000  - 

Global IME Bank Limited  3,865,000,000  4,960,000,000 

Himalayan Bank Limited  1,430,000,000  1,520,000,000 

Janata Bank Limited  813,500,000  1,800,000,000 

Jyoti Bikash Bank Limited  719,800,000  250,000,000 

Kailash Bikash Bank Ltd  543,300,000  - 

Kamana Sewa Bikash Bank Ltd  515,800,000  - 

Kumari Bank Limited  2,250,100,000  800,000,000 

Laxmi Bank Ltd  1,507,500,000  1,600,000,000 

Lumbini Bikash Bank Ltd  450,000,000  - 

Machapucchechre Bank Limited  979,000,000  2,620,000,000 

Mega Bank limited  1,280,000,000  1,850,000,000 

Muktinath Bikash Bank Ltd  753,000,000  100,000,000 

Nabil Bank Limited  2,610,000,000  3,200,000,000 

NCC Bank Limited  306,100,000  - 

Nepal Bangladesh Bank Limited  1,700,000,000  1,700,000,000 

Nepal Investment Bank Ltd  1,120,000,000  1,800,000,000 

Nepal SbI Bank Ltd  2,600,000,000  1,400,000,000 

Prabhnu Bank Limited  1,416,700,000  1,200,000,000 

Prime Commercial Bank Limited  2,471,000,000  2,300,000,000 

Sanima Bank Limited  1,125,300,000  960,000,000 

Shangrila Development Bank Ltd (Bikash)  209,000,000  - 

Siddhartha Bank Limited  3,493,000,000  2,000,000,000 

Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Limited  100,000,000  750,000,000 

Sunrise Bank Limited  1,250,000,000  1,350,000,000 

Total  47,158,300,000  42,400,000,000 

Amount in NRs.
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5.2 Loans & Receivables

5.2.1 Loans and Advances to Policy Holders

5.2.2 Loans and Advances to Staffs

5.3 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through P/L

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Policy Loan- Surakshit Jeevan  4,160,211,940  2,762,379,807 

Policy Loan-Jeevan Jyoti  982,299,552  884,373,940 

Policy Loan- Dhana Barsha 15yrs  181,721,419  191,313,851.00 

Policy Loan- Dhana Barsha 20yrs  30,464,726  28,006,829.00 

Policy Loan-Jeevan Sambridhi 15yrs  2,267,364,594  1,989,268,030.00 

Policy Loan-Jeevan Sambridhi 20yrs  179,632,231  137,074,304.00 

Policy Loan-Naulo Dhana Barsha  40,187,641  19,235,579.00 

Policy Loan-Naulo Jiwan Sambridhi  1,367,658,853  702,935,184.00 

Policy Loan-Child Edu  67,962,464  40,139,792.00 

Policy Loan- Jeevan Laxmi  75,812,202  64,562,540.00 

Policy Loan- Jeevan Sahara  2,323,042,807  1,501,022,122.00 

Policy Loan- Jeevan Sarathi  121,197,386  58,924,601.00 

Policy Loan-Saral Jeevan  915,000  796,000.00 

Policy Loan-Jeevan Unnati  91,317,168  39,734,172.00 

Policy Loan On Rural Endownment 
Assurance

 75,000  9,000.00 

Total  11,889,862,983  8,419,775,751 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Home Loan Scheme  36,669,640.39  9,777,827 

Staff Loans (Cash & Bike Loan)  148,574,756.98  140,178,872 

Total  185,244,397.37  149,956,700 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Siddhartha Equity Orineted Scheme  9,279,058.88  9,047,511.20 

NMB Sulav Investment Fund -1  3,917,857.08  4,182,185.70 

NIBL Samriddhi Fund  10,778,056.62  11,813,960.55 

Laxmi Value Fund -1  9,347,718.60  9,393,540.75 

Global IME Samunnat Yojana -1  15,910,561.30  16,651,028.95 

Nabil Equity Fund  5,255,131.83  5,553,654.86 

Nmb Hybrid Fund-L1  6,328,538.83  6,114,012.09 

Nibl Pragati Fund  1,274,077.68  1,541,223.00 

Siddhartha Equity Fund  9,764,577.32  9,251,670.88 

Sanima Equity Fund  22,560,000.00  22,944,000.00 

Citizen Mutual Fund-1  20,360,000.00  18,560,000.00 

Ordinary Shares: Public Companies  4,142,986,066.87  2,914,774,045.67 

Total  4,257,761,645.01  3,029,826,833.65 

5.3.1 Equity instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss are designated in this category upon initial recog-
nition. The fair value of equity instruments is based on the last traded price at the Nepal Stock Exchange as at the 
date of Financial Position. Changes in fair values of the financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss are 
recorded in fair value gains or losses in the SOPL. 

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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Note 5.1.2A - Bonds without additional cost for FY 2018/19 (2075/76)

Particulars FDR 
No

Amount Period Period Yrs Interest Rate Mode

Issuedate Maturitydate

Debenture

10.25% Global IME Bank De-
benture 2080/81

 50,255,000 4/11/2019 4/11/2024 5 Years 10.25% Qtly

10.25% NB Bank Debenture 
2085

 50,000,000 7/4/2019 7/4/2029 10 Years 10.25% Hly

10.50 Nepal investment Bond 
2082

 184,683,000 6/19/2019 6/19/2026 7 Years 10.50% Hly

8% Nepal Investment Bank 
Debenture 2077

15  100,000,000 7/21/2013 7/21/2020  7years 8.00% Hly

8% Bank Of Kathmandu Deben-
ture 2076

10  50,000,000 5/19/2013 5/18/2020  7 Years 8.00% Hly

8% BoK debenture 2079 32 104,980,000 6/29/2015 6/27/2022  7years 8.00% Hly

8% EBL Debenture 2079 32  50,000,000 6/10/2013 6/10/2022  10 Years 8.00% Hly

8% EBL Debenture 2079 65  30,000,000 6/10/2013 6/10/2022  10 Years 8.00% Hly

8% EBL Debenture 2078 117 110770000 7/17/2015 7/15/2021  6 Years 8.00% Hly

8%Laxmi Bank Debenture 2076 14 57,500,000 2/5/2013 2/6/2020  7 Years 8.00% Hly

8%Laxmi Bank Debenture 2076 15 28,500,000 2/5/2013 2/6/2020  7 Years 8.00% Hly

8% Siddhartha Bank Debenture 
2076

9 50,000,000 5/20/2013 5/19/2020  7Years 8.00% Hly

7.5 SBL debenture 2078 16 100,000,000 1/23/2015 1/22/2022  7 Years 7.50% Hly

7.5 SBL debenture 2078 17 14,092,000 1/23/2015 1/22/2022  7 Years 7.50% Hly

Nepal SBI(12.5%NepalSBI 
Debenture2078)

13 15,843,000 2/12/2012 2/12/2022  10Years 12.50% Hly

8%Nepal SBI Debenture 2079 4 60,000,000 2/3/2013 2/4/2023  10Years 8.00% Hly

8% Himalayan Bank Debenture 
2077

10 100,000,000 7/15/2013 7/14/2020  7Years 8.00% Hly

8.5% Citizens Bond 2077 5 94,006,000 1/14/2014 1/14/2021  7Years 8.50% Qtly

7% Sanima Debenture 2079 004 169,850,000 8/5/2015 8/5/2022  7 Years 7.00% Hly

Total 1,420,479,000

Government Securities

Development Bond 2077 38 250,000,000 12/23/2013 12/23/2020  7 years 3.49% Hly

Development Bond 2081 68 100,000,000 6/12/2015 6/10/2024  9 years 3.08% Hly

Total 350,000,000

Grand Total  
1,770,479,000 

Amount in NRs.
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Note 5.1.2A - Bonds without additional cost for FY 2018/19 (2075/76)

S.N. Name of Mutual Fund Quantity Total Cost Avg. Cost 
Price

Market Price at 
FY Closing Date

 Total Value as per 
Market Price 

1  Siddhartha Equity Orineted 
Scheme 

 857,584.00  8,983,135.67  10.47  10.82  9,279,058.88 

2  NMB Sulav Investment 
Fund -1 

 362,094.00  4,246,549.06  11.73  10.82  3,917,857.08 

3  NIBL Samriddhi Fund  1,163,937.00  11,708,848.30  10.06  9.26  10,778,056.62 

4  Laxmi Value Fund -1  916,443.00  9,164,430.00  10.00  10.20  9,347,718.60 

5  Global IME Samunnat 
Yojana -1 

 1,898,635.00  18,986,350.00  10.00  8.38  15,910,561.30 

6  Nabil Equity Fund  563,251.00  5,632,510.00  10.00  9.33  5,255,131.83 

7  Nmb Hybrid Fund-L1  630,961.00  6,309,610.00  10.00  10.03  6,328,538.83 

8  NIBL Pragati Fund  171,247.00  1,712,470.00  10.00  7.44  1,274,077.68 

9  Siddhartha Equity Fund  967,748.00  9,677,480.00  10.00  10.09  9,764,577.32 

10  Sanima Equity Fund  2,400,000.00  24,000,000.00  10.00  9.40  22,560,000.00 

11  Citizen Mutual Fund-1  2,000,000.00  20,000,000.00  10.00  10.18  20,360,000.00 

 Total 11,931,900.00  120,421,383.03  114,775,578.14 

Amount in NRs.
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Note 5.3B - Ordinary Shares: Public Companies for FY 2075/76 ( 2018/19)

S.N. Name No of 
Share

 Total Share 
Amount 

 Average 
Cost 
Price 

 Market 
Price Per 

Share 2019-
07-16 

 Total Value as 
per Market Price 

1 Agriculture Development Bank 
Limited

161,531  60,962,816.73  377.41  409.00  66,066,179.00 

2 Arun Kabeli Power Ltd. 46,374  21,524,681.98  464.15  188.00  8,718,312.00 

3 Bank Of Kathmandu Ltd.- Promoters 365,188  40,825,401.34  111.79  150.00  54,778,185.00 

4 Bank of Kathmandu Ltd. 17,470  6,641,344.51  380.16  255.00  4,454,850.00 

5 Bhargav Bikas Bank Ltd. ( acq by 
Shine Resunga)

932  181,604.07  194.85  199.00  185,468.00 

6 Century Commercial Bank Ltd. 11,322  3,715,940.32  328.21  177.00  2,003,994.00 

7 Chhimek Laghubitta Bikas Bank 
Limited

23,229  27,255,824.07  1,173.35  950.00  22,067,550.00 

8 Chilime Hydropower Company 
Limited

40,705  45,407,238.15  1,115.52  521.00  21,207,305.00 

9 Citizen Bank International Limited 64,833  21,470,014.80  331.16  224.00  14,522,592.00 

10 Citizen Investment trust-Promoter 
share

343,024  666,429,667.87  1,942.81  1,942.81  666,429,667.87 

11 Citizen Investment Trust 12,352  30,402,016.92  2,461.30  2,429.00  30,003,008.00 

12 Civil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 6,871  8,348,105.27  1,214.98  555.00  3,813,405.00 

13 Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha 
Limited

6,317  5,748,634.43  910.03  722.00  4,560,874.00 

14 Deva Bikas Bank Limited 52  9,991.61  192.15  146.00  7,592.00 

15 Everest Bank Limited 147,606  160,516,160.75  1,087.46  666.00  98,305,596.00 

16 First Micro Finance Development 
Bank Ltd.

595  264,931.65  445.26  375.00  223,125.00 

17 Garima Bikas Bank Limited 4,653  871,443.20  187.29  224.00  1,042,272.00 

18 Global IME Bank Limited ( Merger 
With Janata)

92,654  27,264,776.58  294.26  295.00  27,332,930.00 

19 Himalayan Bank Limited 72,297  56,258,677.30  778.16  552.00  39,907,944.00 

20 Infrastructure Bank Ltd.- Promoter 
share

17,900,000  
1,790,000,000.00 

 100.00  100.00  1,790,000,000.00 

21 Janata Bank Nepal Ltd.( merger with 
Global)

9,571  2,436,515.29  254.57  214.00  2,048,194.00 

22 Kumari Bank Limited 194,177  43,478,195.67  223.91  220.00  42,718,940.00 

23 Laxmi Bank Limited 8,998  2,706,400.02  300.78  226.00  2,033,548.00 

24 Machhapuchhre Bank Limited 108,715  27,462,236.10  252.61  264.00  28,700,760.00 

25 Mahila Sahayatra Microfinance Bittiya 
Sanstha Ltd.

50  78,071.24  1,561.42  441.00  22,050.00 

26 Mega Bank Nepal Ltd. 4  501.51  125.38  213.00  852.00 

27 Mero Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha 
Ltd.

134  10,800.00  80.60  532.00  71,288.00 

28 Nabil Bank Limited( Promoter Con-
verted to Public)

79,257  71,133,373.81  897.50  800.00  63,405,600.00 

29 Nepal Bangladesh Bank Limited 76,121  34,712,641.71  456.02  222.00  16,898,862.00 

30 Nepal Bank Limited 568,859  214,962,578.77  377.88  336.00  191,136,624.00 

31 Nepal Credit And Commercial Bank 
Limited

164,055  48,882,473.39  297.96  246.00  40,357,530.00 

32 Nepal Doorsanchar Comapany 
Limited

264,887  180,553,804.44  681.63  693.00  183,566,691.00 

33 Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. Promoter 
Share

140,773  67,713,151.19  481.01  468.00  65,881,764.00 

34 Nepal Investment Bank Limited 82,958  54,344,646.10  655.09  519.00  43,055,202.00 

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Amount in NRs.
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35 Nepal Reinsurance Co. Ltd.- Pro-
moters

718,951  71,895,100.00  100.00  100.00  71,895,100.00 

36 Nepal SBI Bank Limited 67,916  59,240,692.20  872.26  469.00  31,852,604.00 

37 Nerude Laghubita Bikas Bank Limited 1,619  1,706,415.21  1,053.99  470.00  760,930.00 

38 NIC Asia Bank Ltd.- Promoters 974,551  70,820,400.00  72.67  272.00  265,077,872.00 

39 NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 39,766  3,535,751.66  88.91  448.00  17,815,168.00 

40 NMB Bank Ltd.( merger with Om 
Dev.)

26,272  5,520,665.91  210.13  382.00  10,035,904.00 

41 Oriental Hotels Limited 1,655  589,972.03  356.48  607.00  1,004,585.00 

42 Prabhu Bank Promoter share( Ratio 
changed from 55%)

68,186  12,109,014.87  177.59  171.00  11,659,806.00 

43 Prabhu Bank Limited( Change ratio 
adjusted)

7,826  1,389,548.45  177.56  266.00  2,081,716.00 

44 Premier Insurance Co. Ltd. 62  35,051.03  565.34  490.00  30,380.00 

45 Prime Commercial Bank Ltd. 153,111  48,820,602.76  318.86  278.00  42,564,858.00 

46 Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Ltd 3  3,680.58  1,226.86  948.00  2,844.00 

47 Sanima Bank Limited 126,614  45,878,599.08  362.35  348.00  44,061,672.00 

48 Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd. 3,037  5,110,853.44  1,682.86  771.00  2,341,527.00 

49 Siddhartha Bank Limited 45,993  20,519,548.19  446.15  318.00  14,625,774.00 

50 Soaltee Hotel Limited 15,432  4,056,616.35  262.87  244.00  3,765,408.00 

51 Standard Chartered Bank Limited 122,733  146,732,700.93  1,195.54  682.00  83,703,906.00 

52 Sunrise Bank Limited 13,853  6,523,938.49  470.94  248.00  3,435,544.00 

53 Synergy Power Development Ltd. 616  61,600.00  100.00  90.00  55,440.00 

54 Vijaya laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 1,415  1,273,379.74  899.92  485.00  686,275.00 

Grand Total  23,406,175 4,228,398,791.71  4,142,986,066.87 

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Amount in NRs.
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Note 6

Note 7

Note 8

Note 9

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Other Assets (Advance Tax Deposit)  1,632,828,767  1,092,830,195 

Advance Tax "Nepal Life Building"  58,685,302  51,642,030 

Advance Tax-Suing In The Court  18,382,508  18,382,508 

Advance tax-Share  1,203,013  1,193,098 

Total  1,711,099,590  1,164,047,831 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

Claim Receivable From Reinsurer (Ordinary Policy)  108,045,329  39,649,906 

Claim Receivable From Reinsurer (Expatriate Policy)  -  36,372,127 

Insurance Premium Receivables From Policyholders  -  1,165,143,404 

Less: Impairment  -  (184,815,047)

Interest Receivables On Premium Receivables  -  179 

Total  108,045,329  1,056,350,569 

7.1 Insurance Premium receivable include insurance premium accounted for on accrual basis considering 30 days of outstanding 
insurance premium receivable as at the year end,as per management estimate adjusted with impairment considering the average 
5 years persistency ratio and lapse ratio of all the policies of the company. 

7.2 Claim receivable from Reinsurance are accounted for actual basis. Reinsurance receivable balance as at SOFP date are due 
within a period 12 months are hence current in nature. The company does not have any collateral as security against potential 
default by reinsurance counterparty.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

Share Application Money  850,000  850,000 

Income Receivable From "Nepal Life Building"  20,810,581  27,537,229 

Deficit Premium Receivable  19,734  19,933 

Total  21,680,315  28,407,162 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

Temporary Advances - Others (Building)  436,500.00  999,250 

Advance To Agent  309,473.00  360,439 

Gratuity Deposit at CIT  69,328,198.00  - 

Temprory Advance Others  795,281.00  295,281 

Temp.Advance To Building Mgmt 
Company

 243,033.00  243,033 

Deposit  410,528.00  378,528 

Staff Advance  943,331.00  3,479,089 

Sundry Debtors  45,884,691.00  4,972,547 

Interest Receivables On Investments 
(Dep With Bank)

 160,352,461.00  152,125,031 

Interest Receivables On Policy Loan  1,314,728,696.00  909,866,960 

Total  1,593,432,192  1,072,720,158 

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

INSURANCE RECEIVABLES

OTHER RECEIVABLES

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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Note 10

Note 10A

Note 11

9.1. Other Financial Assets that fall under the classification of financial instruments are carried at amortised cost and those oth-
er assets that do not fall within the definition are carried at cost. These instruments are regularly monitored for impairment.  
 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Stock/Inventory (Other Stock Items / Misc. Stock)  39,819  39,819 

Stock Inventory (Stationary & Others)  4,641,367  2,030,504 

Stamps In Hand  469,308  63,391 

Prepaid Insurance  481,428  610,413 

Prepaid Expenses  321,939  4,500 

Deferred Interest (Note 10A)  75,861,765  33,599,718 

Total  81,815,626  36,348,346 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

 Deferred Interest (Staff Home Loan)  59,666,043  17,690,034 

 Deferred Interest (Staff Loan)  16,195,722  15,909,684 

Total  75,861,765  33,599,718 

Particulars Current Year  Previous Year 

Cash Balance

Cash Balance  164,452,746.93  61,643,153 

Cheque Balance  1,663,336,247.00  362,852,662 

Total Cash Balance  1,827,788,994  424,495,815 

Bank Balance (Current A/C)

Deposit in Commercial Banks  197,658,785.00  236,215,138 

Deposit in Development Banks  -  - 

Deposit in Finance Ltd  -  - 

Short Term Deposit with Banks & Financial Institution

Commercial Bank  5,223,278,802.00  2,176,817,676 

Development Bank  797,213,519.00  23,041,408 

Finance Company  4,539,782.00  1,446,030 

Total Bank Balance  6,222,690,888  2,437,520,252 

Total  8,050,479,882  2,862,016,067 

Note 11.1 Cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months. There are no bank 
overdrafts held by the company.

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

OTHER ASSETS

DEFERRED INTEREST

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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Note 12A

Note 12B

Note 12C

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Insurance Contract Liability  55,278,444,107  42,289,037,952 

Cost of Bonus  8,775,629,477  6,057,363,259 

Surplus  779,294,959  1,250,395,073 

 Total  64,833,368,543  49,596,796,284 

"Note 12A.1 Insurance Contract Liabilities are recognised by actuary following guidelines issued by the regulator, Beema Samiti. 
The liability is determined as the sum of the discounted value of the expected future benefits, which are directly related to the 
contract, less the discounted value of the expected theoretical premiums that would be required to meet the future cash outflows 
based on the valuation assumptions used. The liability is based on current regulatory assumptions.  
15.2 The cost of bonus and surplus are also determined as per acturial valuation. "    

Particulars Previous Year Previous Year

Unexpired risk provision of term insurance policy  368,773,451  293,931,552 

 Total  368,773,451  293,931,552 

 Note 12B.1 Provision for unexpired risk are determined by acturial valuation for Term Insurance Policy only in line with direction of 
regulator (Beema Samiti).     

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Claim Death Payable  61,657,507  47,232,683 

Maturity Claim  460,785,550  543,808,993 

Survival Benefit  392,950,159  964,133,953 

Total  915,393,216  1,555,175,628 

Note 12C.1 Provision for claims Incurred but Not Reported (IBNR) is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation report prepared 
while evaluating insurer’s liabilities. Provision of 115% of outstanding claim, though not in strict compliance with NFRS, has been 
made as per section 15(d) of Insurance Regulation 2049 also on account specific direction given by Beema Samiti on Poush 12, 
2075. 

Note 12

Particulars Note Current Year Previous Year

Inurance Contract Liability 12A  64,833,368,543  49,596,796,284 

Unexpired Risk Reserve 12B  368,773,451  293,931,552 

Outstanding Claim 12C  915,393,216  1,555,175,628 

 Total  66,117,535,210.00  51,445,903,464 

Note 12. General insurance contract liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged. These 
liabilities include Insurance Contract Liabiliy, Unexpired Risk Reserve and Outstanding Claim.    

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

GROSS INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITY

INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITY

UNEXPIRED RISK RESERVE

OUTSTANDING CLAIM

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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Note 13

Note 14

Note 15

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Pension and Gratuity  76,464,851  8,142,779 

Leave Encashment  51,217,586  43,602,368 

Total  127,682,437  51,745,147 

"Note 13.1 Past service costs are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Note 13.2 The retirement benefit scheme for the gratuity of the company's employees is funded in line with statutory require-
ments. The leave benefits however are unfunded. 

Note 15.1 The fair value of deposit liabilities approximates its carrying amount because of its short term maturities as such no fair 
value treatment for the same are given.   
  

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Other Liabilities (Sundry Creditors)  153,355,709  88,939,676 

Provident Fund Payable  194,620  161,984 

Salary Bonus Etc. Payable  15,224,979  10,451,465 

Citizen Investment Trust Payable  1,297,577  687,000 

Total  170,072,885  100,240,125 

Particulars  Current Year Previous Year

Contribution To Avikarta Sangh  353,910  161,670 

Service Fee Payable To Beema Samiti  231,110,190  173,359,029 

New Agent Lic. Fee Payable To Beema Samiti  12,134,496  6,832,986 

Renewal Agent Lic.Fee Payable To Beema Samiti  1,570,527  681,739 

Tax Deducted At Source (TDS)  268,522,289  164,271,527 

Tax Provision Payable  16,156,494  16,156,494 

Other Liabilities(Share Application Amt Refund.)  50,500  52,000 

Other Liabilities(Cash Dividend Payable)  139,944,349  3,160,191 

Other LI(Cash Dividend Payable through IPS)  -  82,402,337 

Misc Credit (Agent Training)  178,659  177,159 

Payable to Agent (Misc. )  5,604,398  3,316,094 

Other Liabilities (Misc Credit Account)  73,500  48,600 

  66,785,211  64,416,914 

Other Current Liabilities (Note 15B)  78,399,224  62,659,634 

 Total  820,883,747  577,696,374 

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION

OTHER FIANANCIAL LIABILTIES

OTHER LIABILITIES

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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Note 15B

Note 16

Note 17

Note 15A

Note 15A.1 These are recognised on accrual basis. The fair value of deposit liabilities approximates its carrying amount because 
of its short term maturities as such no fair value treatment for the same are given. Any movement in deposit liabilities other than 
through receipt and/or payment cash are accounted for in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Particulars  Current Year Previous Year

Deposits Liabilities(Policy Deposit)  39,128,624  35,092,500 

Proposal And Other Deposits  896,136  885,418 

Other Deposits (Miscellaneous Receipts)  253,894  253,894 

Deposits For Nepal Life Building  122,532  122,532 

Security Deposit "Nepal Life Building"  14,619,748  22,726,412 

Unidentified Deposit  11,517,781  5,089,662 

Amt Payable For Building Construction 
"Retention"

 246,496  246,496 

Total  66,785,211  64,416,914 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Claim Payable  77,730,148 62011280

Payable to Forfeited Policy  669,076 648354

Total  78,399,224  62,659,634 

Note 15B - Other Current Liabilities are recorded and reported at accrual basis on legal and constructive obligation to the 
insurance company

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Reinsurance Premium Payable  78,539,961  54,744,673 

Agents Commission Payable  1,072,823,014  708,623,613 

Incentive Commission Payable  31,622,476  30,628,603 

 Total  1,182,985,451  793,996,890 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Provision for bad debt  4,467,623  12,559,394 

Provision for Staff Bonus  137,886,845  125,033,201 

Impairment on Agent Loan  -  - 

Provision of loss on investment  -  - 

 Total  142,354,468  137,592,595 

Note 17.1 Provision for Bad Debt are provided as per management estimate considering the recoverability of debt.  
Note 17.2 Provision for Staff Bonus are provided as per GAAP Financials i.e. 10% of Profit as per GAAP Financials as per Bonus 
Act 2030.

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

INSURANCE PAYABLES

OTHER PROVISION

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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(a) Disclosure under NAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets"

Note 18

The company has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity. Share issue cost directly attributable to the issue of equity 
instruments is adjusted from Share Premium Account. No adjustment for the same is made in share capital to match it with the 
share capital as per GAAP duly recognised by Office of the Company Registrar of Nepal.   

Particulars Opening 
Balance

"Additions  
During the Year"

"Utilised/Reversed  
During the Year"

Closing Balance

Provision for Bad Debt

"For The Year Ended 16th July, 2019  
(Ashad 31, 2076)"

 12,559,394  4,087,640  12,179,411  4,467,623 

"For The Year Ended 16th July, 2018  
(Ashad 32, 2075)"

 4,467,623  8,091,771  -  12,559,394 

Provision for Staff Bonus

"For The Year Ended 16th July, 2019  
(Ashad 31, 2076)"

 125,033,201  137,886,845  125,033,201  137,886,845 

"For The Year Ended 16th July, 2018  
(Ashad 32, 2075)"

 99,558,491  125,033,201  99,558,491  125,033,201 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Authorized Capital

A. 50,000,000 Equity Shares worth Rs. 100/- each  5,000,000,000  5,000,000,000 

B. ………Non Redeemable Preferred worth Rs….. Each

C………..Redeemable Preferred worth Rs……. Each

Issued Capital

A. 54,961,608 Equity shares worth Rs. 100/- Each  5,496,160,810  4,396,928,648 

B. ………Non Redeemable Preferred worth Rs….. Each

C………..Redeemable Preferred worth Rs……. Each

Paid up Capital

A. 54,961,608 Equity shares worth Rs. 100/- Each  5,496,160,810  4,396,928,648 

B. ………Non Redeemable Preferred worth Rs….. Each

C………..Redeemable Preferred worth Rs……. Each

Total  5,496,160,810  4,396,928,648 

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

SHARE CAPITAL 

RECONCILIATION OF NO. OF SHARES
Note 18.1

Particulars Current Year Previous 
Year

Opening Number of Ordinary Shares  43,969,287  30,964,287 

Add: Number of Bonus shares issued  10,992,321  13,005,000 

Closing Number of Ordianry Shares  54,961,608  43,969,287 

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

SHARE OWNERSHIP DETAILS

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 1% OR MORE OF 
THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL 

Note 18.2 Rights of Ordinary Shareholders  

Note 18 A

Note 18.2 Rights of Ordinary Shareholders  
All issued shares are fully paid up and are listed on the Nepal stock Exchange.The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive divi-
dends as declared by annual general meeting and are entitled to one vote per share at General Meetings of the company.  

The shareholder pattern of the company is as follows: 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Promoters No.of Share % Holding No.of Share % Holding

Domestic Ownership

Organised Entities  -  -  -  - 

Individual  32,976,965 60%  30,778,501 70%

Foreign Ownership  -  -  -  - 

Total  32,976,965 60%  30,778,501 70%

General Public

Individual  21,984,643 40%  13,190,786 30%

Total  54,961,608 100%  43,969,286 100%

Name of Shareholders
Current Year Previous Year

Shareholding % Amount (Rs) Shareholding % Amount (Rs)

1. Suvash Chandra Sanghai 6.60%  290,186,600 7.70%  338,551,000 

2. Anuj Agrawal 5.16%  227,015,700 6.02%  264,851,700 

3. Govind Lal Sanghai 4.60%  202,204,200 5.37%  235,904,900 

4. Purushottam Lal Sanghai 3.53%  145,401,800 4.21%  185,157,900 

5. Pawan Kumar Golyan 3.31%  145,180,300 4.12%  181,271,800 

6. Bishal Agrawal 3.30%  133,706,800 3.86%  169,635,400 

7. Ram Chand Sanghai 3.04%  155,375,800 3.85%  169,377,000 

8. Basudev Golyan 2.80%  122,935,400 3.26%  143,424,700 

9. Kavita Sanghai 2.02%  88,601,300 2.35%  103,368,200 

10. Sushil Gupta 1.27%  56,001,300 1.42%  62,557,000 

11. Tulasi Ram Agrawal 1.05%  45,962,100 1.22%  53,622,500 

12. Sanchita Agrawal 1.05%  45,962,000 1.22%  53,622,300 

13. Nikunja Agrawal 1.05%  45,961,800 1.22%  53,622,100 

14. Manju Agrawal 1.05%  45,961,800 1.22%  53,622,100 

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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Note 19

Note 19.1

Note 19.2

 Note 19.1.1 Share issue cost directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments during FY 2074/75 is adjusted from Share 
Premium Account. FPO income earned during issue of equity instruments are also recognised under Share Premium.  
 
 Note 19.1.2 Bonus declared from Share Premium during FY 2074/75 and distributed during FY 2075/76 are adjusted from Share 
Premium Account for FY 2075/76.

Note 19.2.1 These include revenue reserve carried forward from previous year plus profit for the year and dividend paid out as well 
as adjustment arising from prior year transactions specially pertaining to tax adjustments. These also include adjustments in the 
profit as per NFRS financials and GAAP financials for the period by transferring to Regulatory Reserve and also carried out as per 
direction of Beema Samiti dated 2075/09/12. The profit for the year, hence reported under both the set of financials are same for 
each of the years covered by the financial statements.   

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Share Premium (Note 19.1)  1,750,911,560  2,850,143,722 

Reserve and Surplus (Note 19.2)  1,217,776,029  1,170,612,529 

Catastrophic Reserve (Note 19.3)  554,906,358  436,701,878 

Regulatory Reserve (Note 19.4)  237,789,071  918,762,829 

 Total  3,761,383,019  5,376,220,958 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Share Premium  2,850,143,722  4,150,643,745 

Share Issue Expense

FPO income

Bonus Issue for previous year  (1,099,232,162)  (1,300,500,023)

 Total  1,750,911,560  2,850,143,722 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Capital reserve

General reserve C/F from Previous Year  1,170,612,529.41  1,071,975,001 

Bonus share 

Cash Dividend  (1,033,256,248)  (883,297,008)

Bonus Share (Not Capitalized)

Profit transferred from Profit and Loss a/c  1,080,419,748  987,262,244 

FPO Income  - 

Tax provision for 2073/74  -  (5,327,708)

Transfer to Regulatory Reserve 

Total  1,217,776,029  1,170,612,529 

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

OTHER EQUITY

SHARE PREMIUM

RESERVE & SURPLUS

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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Note 19.3

Note 19.4.1 - A catastrophic reserve equal to 10% of the net profit, is to be appropriated as per the circular issued by Beema Sami-
ti dated 2071.6.08 also in line with its direction dated 2075/09/12.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Opening Catastrophic Reserve  436,701,878  325,418,686 

Addition for the period  118,204,480  111,283,192 

 Total  554,906,358  436,701,878 

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

CATASTROPHIC RESERVE

REGULATORY RESERVE

 INSURANCE PREMIUM INCOME

Note 19.4

Note 20
A. Gross Insurance Premium

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Opening Figure  918,762,829  577,752,706 

Addition for the period  (680,973,757)  341,010,123 

Total  237,789,071  918,762,829 

Note 19.4.2 As per Directive of Beema Samiti dated 2075/09/12 any difference in the profit for the year in the NFRS financial 
statements and the GAAP financials needs to adjusted in Other Comprehensive Income of the NFRS financial statement so as to 
match the profits for the disclosed by both the sets of financial statements. In consideration to the directive such difference [ also 
reflected in the reconciliation statements] are accounted under regulatory reserve and are shown separately on the face of the 
financial statements.

S.N. Types of 
Insurance Policy

First Year Premium Renewed Premium Single Premium Gross Insurance Premium

Current Year Previous 
Year

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous 
Year

Current Year Previous Year

1 Endowment 
Policy

5,350,448,682.00 2,945,295,275  6,284,170,254  4,235,774,026  906,428,753  498,675,473  12,541,047,689  7,679,744,774 

2 Money Back 
Policy

1,167,838,478.00  990,958,495  4,725,288,395  3,946,596,300  18,279,238  34,097,169  5,911,406,111  4,971,651,964 

3 Jeevan 
Sahara Policy 
(Convertible)

1,433,690,718.00 1,032,003,568  2,647,229,882  1,925,239,823  -  4,080,920,600  2,957,243,391 

4 Jeevan Sarathi 
Policy (Others)

 171,817,453.00  88,581,677  181,709,143  112,766,599  -  353,526,596  201,348,276 

5 Term Policy  5,944,477.00  4,860,174  9,189,434  11,118,612  208,984,073  344,792,205  224,117,984  360,770,991 

Total 8,129,739,808.00 5,061,699,189 13,847,587,108 10,231,495,360 1,133,692,064  877,564,847  23,111,018,980 16,569,739,178 

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Rental Income From Premises 

Investment Properties  79,065,018  70,107,879 

Less: Gross Expenses  35,404,960  28,960,507 

Owner Occupied Properties

Total (A)  43,660,058  41,147,372 

B. Re-Insurance Premium Paid (Ceded)

Note 21

21.1 Rental income

S.N. Types of Insurance Policy Current Year Previous Year

1 Endowment Policy  112,112,860.12  39,764,579 

2 Money Back Policy  97,230,606.66  68,510,705 

3 Jeevan Sahara Policy (Convertible)  53,497,150.52  22,785,710 

4 Jeevan Sarathi Policy (Others)  6,968,434.70  2,609,154 

5 Term Policy  21,627,215.00  49,624,763 

Total  291,436,267.00  183,294,911 

21.2 Interest Income

21.2.1. Interest income from Policy loan

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Interest income from Policy loan (Note 21.2.1)  1,088,468,336  772,361,821 

Income from Government Securities & Securities Guaranteed by Govt.  23,944,533  26,109,326 

Income from fixed deposit of Commercial Banks  4,758,971,808  4,420,190,526 

Income from fixed deposit of Development Banks  236,339,241  13,426,439 

Income from investment in CIT  3,907,766  5,554,809 

Income from fixed deposit of Finance Company  -  - 

Income from debenture of bank and financial institution  100,357,903  99,303,978 

Income from Loan  27,793,748  46,861,323 

Income from other Deposit (Except Fixed Deposit)  73,284,392  28,378,952 

Employment Benefit Interest Income  8,876,373  9,300,449 

Interest from home loan  2,237,727  471,416 

Total (B)  6,324,181,827  5,421,959,039 

Types of Insurance Policy Current Year  Previous Year 

Endowment Life Insurance Policy  492,868,309  355,252,007 

Money Back Life Insurance Policy  380,866,839  281,234,781 

Jeevan Sahara Life Insurance Policy  205,748,550  131,686,349 

Jeevan Sarathi Life Insurance Policy (Other)  8,984,638  4,188,684 

Term Life Insurance Policy  -  - 

Total  1,088,468,336  772,361,821 

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

INVESTMENT INCOME

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.



105jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&%÷@)&^

21.3 Dividend Income

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Dividend income from ordinary shares of Housing 
Finance company

 -  - 

Dividend income from ordinary shares of other 
public company

 37,666,132  29,839,094 

Dividend income from preference share of bank and 
financial institution

Total (C)  37,666,132  29,839,094 

Income from Others

Profit on Purchase of Investment

Less: Loss on Purchase of Investment

Write-Off/Amortized

Income related to Previous Year's

Other Income (Share Transaction included)  164,323.00  158,612 

Total (D)  164,323  158,612 

Grand Total (A+B+C+D)  6,405,672,340  5,493,104,117 

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

 Note 22 - Fees & commission income

Note 23 - Realized/Unrealized Gain/ (Loss) on Fair Value Changes

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Interest on late fee  337,043,731  139,807,072 

Interest on late payment premium receivable  -  64 

Less : Rebate on Late Fees  (64,946,307)

Re-Insurance Commission  64,291,561  17,962,487 

Total  336,388,985  157,769,623 

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Note 23.1 Net Gain on Fair Value Changes

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Fair Value Gain and Losses

Investment Properties

Fair Value gain / loss at Fair Value through P/L  178,501,651  (395,826,695)

Reversal of income recognized

Total fair value gain/(loss)  178,501,651  (395,826,695)

Note 23.2 Net Realised Gains on Derecognition of FVTPL

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through P/L 

Realised Gains on Derecognition of FVTPL  577,447  13,765,970 

Realised Loss on Derecognition of FVTPL  -  - 

Total realised gain/(loss) on derecognition of FVTPL  577,447  13,765,970 

Note 23.3 Non Operating Income/(Expenses)

Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)

Realized gains on disposal  -  - 

Realized loss on disposal  (246,867)  - 

Total realised gain/(loss) on disposal of PPE  (246,867)  - 

Amount in NRs.
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Note 25.1 - Agent commission Expenses

Note 25.2 - Medical Fee Expenses

Note 26

Note 27

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Endowment Policy  1,669,668,633  934,630,264 

Money Back Policy  517,358,226  425,815,340 

Jeevan Sahara Policy  568,415,113  403,614,812 

Jeevan Sarathi Policy  61,461,356  33,659,948 

Term Policy  933,300  831,449 

Total  2,817,836,628  1,798,551,813 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Endowment Policy  8,971,281  4,873,592 

Money Back Policy  2,613,641  2,101,119 

Jeevan Sahara Policy  2,896,179  2,034,382 

Jeevan Sarathi Policy  367,569  189,490 

Term Policy  9,390  5,360 

Total  14,858,060  9,203,943 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipments  18,943,422  16,185,998 

Depreciation on Investment Properties  3,891,392  3,891,391 

Amortization of Intangible Assets  565,021  122,123 

Total  23,399,835  20,199,512 

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Salary  165,357,494  136,076,676 

Allowance (including dress allowance)  91,112,716  58,288,386 

Dashain Allowance  17,891,629  25,623,622 

Provision for Staff Bonus  137,886,845  125,033,201 

Provision on Pension and Gratuity  12,080,279  (5,396,566)

Provision for Leave Encashment  26,240,110  28,732,149 

Company Contribution Provident Fund  12,346,923  10,375,594 

Training Expenses  894,802  267,943 

Employment Benefit - Interest Expenses  9,033,279  9,300,449 

Medical Expenses  -  - 

Termination Benefits  -  - 

Insurance  10,132,770  10,614,776 

Provision for Other Facilities(staff occu-
pancy)

 1,960,833  1,832,000 

Others (Incentive to staff)  80,440,832  32,970,799 

Others (Vehicle Loan)  12,922,370  9,417,731 

Total  578,300,882  443,136,760 

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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Note 28

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Provisions (Note 28.2)  7,206,819  55,844,438 

Building Rent  49,573,324  36,371,240 

Water & Electricity  5,064,126  4,025,823 

Repair & Maintenance

A. Building  478,496  333,844 

B. Vehicle  807,157  464,823 

C. Office Equipment  1,697,184  1,442,617 

D. Others(machinery)  152,032  103,559 

D. Others(software)  284,981  168,237 

Communication  14,380,167  11,375,201 

Printing and Stationary  26,931,896  17,636,977 

"Non Capital Office Items 
(- Capital items costing to less than 10000 
has been treated as revenue expenditure in the year of purchase.)"

 6,654,734  4,286,288 

Transportation  6,457,317  4,972,440 

Travelling Expenses (Including Allowance)

A. Internal  8,844,758  5,331,521 

B. International  3,573,188  2,737,560 

Agent Training  8,581,006  1,935,994 

Other Agents Expenses  1,468,011,653  891,647,554 

Insurance Premium Expenses  3,278,901  2,714,830 

Security Expenses  550,875  343,746 

Legal and Consultancy Fees  2,734,465  1,202,730 

Books and Periodicals  204,774  186,523 

Advertisement and Publicity  105,606,666  65,515,173 

Business Promotion  6,144,803  1,978,274 

Guest Entertainment Expenses  952,734  1,101,041 

Donation and Awards  175,000  912,430 

Board Committee Expenses

A. Meeting Allowance  1,533,000  1,498,803 

B. Others  1,653,678  522,821 

Other Committee/Sub committee Expenses

A. Meeting Allowance  3,677,000  1,784,437 

B. Others  - 

Expenses relating general meeting  754,260  530,533 

A. Actuarial Service Fee

B. Actuarial Expenses  2,351,539  995,832 

Audit Expenses

A. Audit Fee  1,000,000  1,000,000 

B. Tax Audit Fee  -  - 

C. Long Form Audit Fee  -  - 

D. Other Fee  -  - 

E. Internal Audit Fee  999,060  999,060 

F. IS Audit  -  282,500 

G. Others Expenses  74,291  58,917 

Interest

Bank charges  512,278  686,871 

Fee and Charges  7,627,065  7,484,788 

Other Direct Expenses(Policy Stamp)  3,051,376  3,614,010 

Postage and Courier Charges  1,910,948  2,248,597 

Other

A. Staff Entertainment  8,121,918  6,427,570 

B. Staff Conference & Refreshment  3,308,494  725,498 

C. Net Service Charges (Note 28.1)  228,163,459  163,574,036 

C. Others  12,835,683  4,247,085 

Issue Expenses  -  - 

Total  2,005,921,105  1,309,314,221 

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

OTHER EXPENSES
Amount in NRs.
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Note 28.1 - Net Service Charges

Note 28.1 - Net Service Charges

For the year ended Asad 31, 2076 and Asad 32, 2075

Particulars Current Year Previous 
Year

Gross Service Fees  231,110,190  165,697,393 

Less : Re- Insurer's Share  (2,946,731)  (2,123,357)

Total  228,163,459  163,574,036 

Particulars  Current Year  Previous Year 

Impairment on Agent Loan  3,119,179  3,222,179 

Impairment on Premium Receivables  -  44,530,488 

Other Provision  4,087,640  8,091,771 

Total  7,206,819  55,844,438 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Profit attributable to the Company's equity Holders  1,080,419,748  986,191,337 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue  54,961,608  43,969,286 

Basic earning per share  20  22 

Dilute earning per share  20  22 

29.1 Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equityholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number ordinary share in issue during the year.

Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited
Corporate Office, Kamaladi, Kathmandu

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNING PER SHARE

Note 29

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.

Amount in NRs.
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited (Nepal Life) 
was established under the Company Act 2063 and 
Insurance Act 2049 as a public limited company on 
2058/01/21 B.S. (04/05/2001 A.D). Nepal Life is the 
foremost life insurance company established by 
private investors. The ownership structure among 
the paid up capital is 60:40 of promoters group 
and general public. The company has 149,180 
general public shareholders till the end of this 
financial year. The company has insured itself with 
well-known reinsurance company Hannover Rueck 
SE, Germany in Malaysian branch.

The company is also listed on Nepal Stock 
Exchange Ltd. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting 
Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting 
Standard Board (ASB), as per provisions of The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal Act, 
1997. The financial statement has been prepared 
as a going concern basis. The term NFRS, includes 
all the standards and the related interpretations 
which are consistently used. 

Further the directions issued by the Insurance 
regulatory authority of Nepal [Beema Samiti] 
on Poush 12, 2075 with respect to preparation 
of financials as per NFRS, though strictly not in 
line with the NFRS, have also be incorporated 
appropriately. 

2.1 Approval of financial statements
 The Financial Statements were adopted by the 
Board of Directors on its meeting held on 7th 
Poush, 2077 and have been recommended for 
approval by shareholders in the Annual General 
Meeting.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES

3.1 Reporting Pronouncements
The Company has, for the preparation of financial 
statements, adopted the NFRS 2013 pronounced 
by ASB as effective on September 13, 2013. NFRS 
conform, in all material respect, to International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued 
by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB).

3.1.1 Reporting standards in issue but not 
effective date 
A number of new standards and amendments to 
the existing standards and interpretations have 
been issued by IASB after the pronouncements of 
IFRS with varying effective dates. Those become 
applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them 
within NFRS. The company has not elected to 
apply any of the new standards that might have 
impact if applied. IAS 17- Leases can have financial 
and operational impact if applied; however the 
company has not assessed and is also not in the 
process of assessing the possible impact it can 
have in the business of the company. In January 
2016, IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases that will replace 
IAS 17 Leases. IFRS 17 is Insurance Contracts issued 
by the International Accounting Standards Board 
in May 2017. It will replace IFRS 4 on accounting 
for insurance contracts and has an effective date 
of 1 January 2021.

3.1.2 Accounting Conventions
The financial statements have been prepared at 
the historical cost convention on accrual basis 
except otherwise stated in accordance with Nepal 
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by 
Accounting Standard Board (ASB), Nepal so far 
as applicable; the applicable laws; Insurance Act, 
2049; Insurance Regulation 2049; Company Act 
2063 and Directive on Preparation of Financial 
Statement issued by Insurance Board, 2065 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
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including specific direction given by Beema Samiti 
on Poush 12, 2075 and as per general insurance 
practices, as modified by the revaluation of 
available for sale financial assets, and financial 
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss.

The financial statements have been prepared on a 
going concern basis where the accounting policies 
and judgements as required by the standards 
are consistently used and in case of deviations, 
disclosed separately.

The company, while complying with the reporting 
standards, makes critical judgements having 
potentially material impact on the financial 
statements. The accounting policies that relate to 
the financial statements as a whole along with the 
judgements made are described herein.

Where an accounting policy is generally applicable 
to a specific item, the policy is described within 
the relevant note. NFRS requires the company 
to exercise judgement in making accounting 
estimates. Description of such judgement has 
been given in the relevant section of wherever 
they have been applied.

The significant accounting policies applied by the 
Company in preparing its financial statements are 
depicted in these policies have been consistently 
applied to all periods presented except for the 
changes in accounting policies disclosed in the 
same note.

3.1.3 Presentation
For presentation of the statement of financial 
position, assets and liabilities have been divided 
into current and non-current by their maturities, 
wherever applicable, and are disclosed in the 
notes.

The statement of profit or loss has been prepared 
using classification ‘by function’ method.

The statement of cash flows is presented using the 
direct method.

3.1.4 Currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese 
Rupees (NRs) and all values are rounded to the 
nearest rupees, except when otherwise indicated.

3.1.5 Current and non-current distinction

ASSETS
Apart from the property, plant and equipment 
and deferred tax assets, all the assets are taken as 
current assets unless specific additional disclosure 
is made in the notes for current and non-current 
distinction.

LIABILITIES
Apart from the defined benefit plan obligations 
and deferred tax liability, all the liabilities are taken 
as current liabilities unless specific additional 
disclosure is made in the notes for current and 
non-current distinction.

3.1.6 Comparative Information
Comparative information has been restated in 
respect of any items due to change in accounting 
policies or fundamental errors.

3.1.7 Accounting estimates
The company, under NFRS, is required to apply 
accounting policies to most appropriately suit its 
circumstances and operating environment. Further, 
the company is required to make judgement in 
respect of items where the choice of specific policy, 
accounting estimate or assumption to be followed 
could materially affect the financial statements. 
This may later be determined that a different 
choice could have been more appropriate.

Accounting policies have been included in the 
relevant notes for each item of the financial 
statements. The effect and nature of the changes, 
if any, have been disclosed.

NFRS requires the company to make estimates and 
assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities, 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, 
and profit or loss as reported in the financial 
statements.

The company applies estimates in preparing and 
presenting the financial statements. The estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
periodically. Revision to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimates 
are revised, and are applied prospectively.
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Disclosures of the accounting estimates have 
been included in the relevant sections of the 
notes wherever the estimates have been applied 
along with the nature and effect of changes of 
accounting estimates, if any.

3.1.8 Financial Periods
The company follows the Nepalese financial year 
based on the Nepalese calendar. The current 
financial period is from 17th July 2018 to 16th July 
2019 (1st shrawan 2075 to 31st Ashad 2076). 

3.1.9 Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and 
liabilities are non-current and the impact of the 
discounting is material.

3.1.10 Limitation of NFRS implementation
Wherever the information is not adequately 
available and the cost to develop the same would 
exceed the benefit derived, such exception 
to NFRS implementation has been noted and 
disclosed in respective sections.

3.2 Financial Instruments
3.2.1 Financial Assets

3.2.1.1 Initial Recognition and Measurement
The company classifies its financial assets into the 
following measurement categories: 
a. Financial assets held at fair value through 

profit or loss (FVTPL); 
b. Loans and receivables; 
c. Held-to-maturity (HTM); and 
d. Available-for-sale (AFS).

Management determines the classification of its 
financial assets at initial recognition on transaction 
date; (the date on which the Company commits to 
purchase or sell the asset) or, where applicable, at 
the time of reclassification, and recognise initially 
at fair value plus transaction cost.

Loans are recognised when cash is advanced to 
the policy holders, agent and employees.

3.2.1.2 Subsequent Measurement

FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE 
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (FVTPL)
This category has two sub-categories: 
a. Financial assets held for trading, and 
b. Those designated at fair value through profit 

or loss at inception. 

A financial asset is classified as held for trading 
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling 
in the short term. When the company is unable 
to trade these financial assets due to inactive 
markets and management’s intention to sell them 
in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the 
company may elect to reclassify these financial 
assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification to 
loans and receivables, available for sale or held to 
maturity depends on the nature of the asset.

The company classified investments in equity 
instruments and mutual funds as financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss hence those 
financial assets are managed and performance is 
evaluated on the fair value basis.

Financial assets held at fair value through profit 
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value, with 
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value 
taken directly to the gain/loss on fair value changes 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL) are reported under Note 5.3.

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial 
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market and it is expected 
that substantially all of the initial investment will, in 
general, be recovered. 

Receivables arising from insurance and reinsurance 
contracts are classified as insurance receivables 
and are reviewed for impairment as part of the 
impairment review of loans and receivables.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
Effective Interest Rate method (EIR), less impairment. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortisation is included in investment income in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Loan and Receivable include Loan against policy, 
staff loan including home loan against policy, 
agent loans that are disclosed under Note 5.2. 

HELD-TO-MATURITY (HTM)
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed maturities are 
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classified as held to maturity when the company 
has the positive intention and ability to hold until 
maturity.

After initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial 
assets are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method, 
less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included 
in investment income in the Statement of Profit or 
Loss. 

HTM investments include Investment in 
Government Bonds and Fixed Deposits with 
Banks and Financial Institutions that reported 
under Note 5.1. 

During the reporting period Rs. 54,895.35 Million 
was to be earmarked with Beema Samiti upon 
which Rs. 54,958.95 Million crore was earmarked. 

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE (AFS)
Available for sale investments are the investments, 
which are intended to be held for an indefinite 
period of time, which may be sold in response 
to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, 
exchange rates or equity prices or that are not 
classified as loans and receivables, held to maturity 
investments or financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss.

After initial measurement, available for sale financial 
investments are subsequently measured at fair 
value with unrealised gains or losses recognised 
as OCI in the available for sale reserve until the 
investment is derecognised except in the case of 
AFS assets of the Life Policyholders’ fund which 
is transferred to the long term insurance liability 
through the Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income. 

3.2.1.3 De-recognition of financial assets:
Financial assets are derecognised when:
a. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset 

have expired or
b. The Company has transferred its right to 

receive cash flows from the asset and either: 
(a) the company has transferred substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset or (b) the 
company has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

If substantially all the risks and rewards have been 
neither retained nor transferred and the company 
has retained control, the assets shall continue to 
be recognised to the extent of the company’s 
continuing involvement.

3.2.1.4 Impairment of financial assets:
The company assesses at each reporting date 
whether there is objective evidence that a financial 
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 

A financial asset or a group of financial assets 
is deemed to be impaired if, there is objective 
evidence of impairment as a result of one or 
more events that has occurred since the initial 
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) 
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group 
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. 

Objective evidence that a financial asset or group 
of assets is impaired includes observable data that 
comes to the attention of the company about the 
following events:

a. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or 
debtor; 

b. A breach of contract, such as a default or 
delinquency in payments; 

c. It is becoming probable that the issuer or 
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganisation; 

d. The disappearance of an active market for that 
financial asset because of financial difficulties; 
or 

e. Observable data indicating that there is a 
measurable decrease in the estimated future 
cash flow from a group of financial assets since 
the initial recognition of those assets, although 
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the 
individual financial assets in the group

On the objective evidence of test of impairment, 
Financial Assets except Loan to Agents were not 
found impaired. The impairment testing of Loan 
to Agents has been carried out on individual basis 
considering the repayment history of each loan 
and the amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate.



115jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&%÷@)&^

ASSETS CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment 
loss on assets carried at amortised cost has been 
incurred, the amount of the impairment loss is 
measured as the difference between the assets’ 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows (excluding future expected credit 
losses that have not been incurred) discounted 
at the financial asset’s original EIR. The carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced and the loss is 
recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the 
impairment loss decreases and that decrease can 
be related objectively to an event occurring after 
the impairment was recognised, the previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any 
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to 
the extent that the carrying value of the asset does 
not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

3.2.2 Financial Liabilities

3.2.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified as either held 
a. At fair value through profit or loss, or 
b. At amortised cost.

Financial liabilities, not classified as held at fair 
value through statement of profit or loss which 
includes borrowings, are classified as amortised 
cost instruments.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair 
value and include directly attributable transaction 
costs.

The Company determines the classification of its 
financial liabilities at initial recognition.

3.2.2.2 Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost, with any difference between 
proceeds net of directly attributable transaction 
costs and the redemption value recognised in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss over the period 
of the borrowings using the effective interest rate 
method.

3.2.2.3 De-recognition
Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are 
extinguished. A financial liability is extinguished 

when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or 
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by 
another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as a de-recognition 
of the original liability and the recognition of a 
new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit or Loss.

3.2.3 Offsetting of Financial Assets and 
liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net 
amount is reported in the Statement of Financial 
Position only when there is a legally enforceable 
right to off-set the recognised amounts and there 
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.2.4 Fair value Measurement
All assets, liabilities and equity items for which 
fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole.

• Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

• Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is directly or indirectly 
observable

• Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are measured at fair 
value in the financial statements on a recurring 
basis, the company determines whether transfers 
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by 
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period.
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3.2.5 Fair Value Estimation
The fair value of financial instruments traded in 
active markets is based on quoted market prices 
at the reporting date. The quoted market price 
used for financial assets held by the company 
is the current bid price. These instruments are 
included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 
comprise primarily quoted equity investments and 
mutual fund investments classified as fair value 
through Profit and Loss. The fair value of financial 
instruments that are not traded in an active 

market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) 
is determined by using valuation techniques. 
These valuation techniques maximize the use of 
observable market data where it is available and 
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. 
If all significant inputs required to determine 
fair value of an instrument are observable, the 
instrument is included in level 2. If one or more of 
the significant inputs is not based on observable 
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Investment in unquoted shares are valued at cost.

Particulars Fair Value Hierarchy Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at Fair Value through PL     
Quoted Investments in Equities  1,614,661,299  - -  1,614,661,299 

Unquoted Investments in Equities  - - 2,528,324,768 2,528,324,768 

Quoted Mutual Funds  114,775,578 -  114,775,578 

Total  1,729,436,877  - 2,528,324,768 4,257,761,645 

3.3 Property, Plant & Equipment

RECOGNITION
Property, plant and equipment are tangible items 
that are held for use in the production or supply 
of services or for administrative purposes and 
are expected to be used during more than one 
period. The company applies the requirements 
of the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 16 
(Property, Plant and Equipment) in accounting for 
these assets. Property, plant and equipment are 
recognized if it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the asset will flow to the 
entity and the cost of the asset can be reliably 
measured.

MEASUREMENT
All categories of property, plant and equipment are 
initially recognised at cost including expenditure 
that is directly attributable to its acquisition. 
Property, Plant & Equipment are subsequently 
measured at historical cost or re-valued amount 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s 
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the company and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. All other expenses on repairs 
and maintenance are charged to Statement Profit 
or Loss during the financial period in which they 
are incurred.

DE-RECOGNITION
Items of property, plant and equipment are 
derecognised upon replacement, disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from its 
use. Gains and losses on disposals are determined 
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying 
amount. These are included in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss under realised gains. When re-valued 
assets are derecognised, the amounts included in 
the revaluation surplus are transferred to retained 
earnings.
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whenever there is an indication that the intangible 
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period 
and the amortisation method for an intangible 
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at 
each financial year end. Changes in the expected 
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption 
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset 
is accounted for by changing the amortisation 
period or method as appropriate and are 
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The 
amortisation expense on intangible assets with 
finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the expense category consistent with 
the intangible asset.

3.5 Investment Property
Investment property is held by entity to earn 
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. 
Buildings, or part of a building, (freehold or held 
under a finance lease) and land (freehold or held 
under an operating lease) held for long term rental 
yields and/or capital appreciation are classified 
as investment property being primarily held for 
leasing out and capital appreciation. 
The entity has applied the cost model as its 
accounting policy and has applied the policy to all 
of its investment property on consistent basis.
The value of investment property as on 16th July, 
2019 is Rs. 238,794,637 as per the cost model of 
accounting. However, fair value of the investment 
property namely ‘Nepal Life Building’ is Rs. 
889,849,000 as per the valuation provided by the 
independent valuator as on 26th November, 2020
The depreciation on building has been calculated 
under straight line basis where the life is estimated 
for 50 years. The land is valued at carrying amount 
without any appreciation.
Investment properties are derecognised either 
when they have been disposed of, or when the 
investment property is permanently withdrawn 
from use and no future economic benefit is 
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses 
on the retirement or disposal of an investment 
property are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss in the year of retirement or disposal.
The total rental income arising from investment 
property and direct operation expenses during the 
year was NPR 79,065,018/- (PY NPR 70,107,879/-) 
and NPR 35,404,960/- (PY NPR 28,960,507/-) has 
been recognized in Statement of Profit or loss on 
net basis.

DEPRECIATION 
Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis 
over the estimated useful lives of the following 
classes of assets:

S.N Particulars Useful Life

1 Computer Equipment 4 Years

2 Office Equipment 4 Years

3 Vehicles (Automobiles) 7 Years

4 Furniture’s & Fixtures (Light) 4 Years

5 Furniture’s & Fixtures (Heavy) 15 Years

6 Software Expenses 5 Years

7 Plant & Machinery (Light) 8 Years

8 Plant & Machinery (Heavy) 15 Years

9 Leasehold 5 Years

10 Building 50 Years

The rates have been applied consistently over 
the years. The asset’s residual values and useful 
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, 
at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s 
carrying amount is written down immediately to its 
estimated recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable 
amount. The value of assets fully depreciated but 
continued to be in use is considered not material.
Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment are determined by reference to their 
carrying amount and are included in profit or loss.

Capital items costing to less than NPR 10,000 has 
been treated as revenue expenditure in the year 
of purchase.

3.4 Intangible assets 
Intangible assets consist primarily of computer 
software.

Intangible assets acquired separately and self-
developed are measured on initial recognition 
at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and any accumulated impairment 
losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed 
to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised 
over the useful economic life using the straight-
line method and assessed for impairment 
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3.6 Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary 
differences between the carrying amount of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized 
for all temporary differences, carry-forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which they can be utilized. 
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting 
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realized; such reductions are reversed when the 
probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to be applied to temporary differences 
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed 
at each reporting date and recognized to the 
extent that it has become probable that future 
taxable profits will be available against which they 
can be used.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are 
offset if legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 
when the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 
entity and the same taxation authority.

3.7 Current Tax Assets
These include advance tax deposited by the 
company for regular (annual) assessment and 
deposits made for appeal proceedings.

The deposit made for regular annual assessment 
as well as deposit made in the course of appeal 
process are accounted for and reported at cost. 
No fair value measurement for advance tax made 
as part of appeal process are made considering 
the uncertainty of time frame where a final 
decision is eventually made that is acceptable to 
the company.

3.8 Other Receivable 
These include receivable from investment property, 
share application and deficit premium receivable. 
These are recognised on accrual basis. The fair 
value of receivable approximates its carrying 
amount because of its short term maturities. As it 

falls under the definition of financial instrument, 
impairment testing is conducted at the end of 
the year. And if objective evidences such as 
information based on facts that can be proved by 
means of search like analysis, measurement, and 
observation of impairment exists, then an estimate 
of impairment in value of receivable is calculated 
and charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.9 Other financial assets 
These include interest receivable from policy 
loans and deposits with banks, debtors including 
doubtful debts, gratuity deposit at CIT, deposits, 
staff advance, and other advances including 
advance to agents. These are also recognised 
on accrual basis. The fair value of receivable 
approximates its carrying amount because of 
its short term maturities. As it falls under the 
definition of financial instrument, impairment 
testing is conducted at the end of the year. And 
if objective evidences such as information based 
on facts that can be proved by means of search 
like analysis, measurement, and observation of 
impairment exists, then an estimate of impairment 
in value of receivable is calculated and charged to 
Statement of Profit or Loss.
 
3.10 Other Assets 
These include Inventory of consumable items such 
as stationary and stamps etc. and also includes 
prepaid expenses and deferred interest. 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net 
realisable value. Due to immateriality, it is carried 
at cost using specific identification method.

The fair value of prepaid expenses approximates 
its carrying amount because of its short term 
maturities.

Deferred Interests result from fair value 
measurement of financial assets namely Staff 
Loan and Home Loan through amortisation. 
After initial measurement, such financial assets 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the Effective Interest Rate method (EIR), 
less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount on acquisition 
(only) that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortisation is included in investment income in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss.
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3.11 Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, 
deposits held with banks, other short term highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less, and bank overdrafts.

3.12 Gross Insurance Contract 
Liability

3.12.1 Insurance Contracts

3.12.1.1 Product classification 
As per NFRS 4 - Appendix A, Insurance Contract 
is a contract under which one party (the insurer) 
accepts significant insurance risk from another 
party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate 
the policyholder if a specified uncertain future 
event (the insured event) adversely affects the 
policyholder’. Considering the provisions, all life 
insurances policies issues by the company fall 
under Insurance Contract covered under NFRS 4 
[B22; B23]. 

Further, NFRS 4 requires an insurer to ‘unbundle’ 
insurance contracts that has deposit components 
embedded into it [In addition to the investment 
component] in certain circumstances and to 
account for the components of a contract as if 
they were separate contracts, [NFRS 4.10]. In 
other circumstances unbundling is either optional 
or is prohibited altogether. There are separate 
accounting treatments for measurement on 
insurance contract with deposit component.

However, since none of the insurance products 
(insurance contracts of the company) have Deposit 
Components that can be measured, hence the 
company have continued to proceed with its 
current accounting practices for all products 
without unbundling the deposit components. 

3.12.1.2 Life Insurance Contract Liability 
NFRS 4 permits a wide range of accounting 
treatments to be adopted for the recognition 
and measurement of insurance contract liabilities, 
including liabilities in respect of insurance 
contracts. The Company calculates insurance 
contract liabilities for insurance contracts as per 
guidelines prescribed by the regulator (Beema 
Samiti), whereby the liability represents the present 
value of estimated future policy related outflows, 
less the present value of estimated future gross 

premiums to be collected from policyholders. 
This method uses best estimates assumptions 
for mortality, morbidity, lapse, expenses and 
investment yields. Interest rate assumptions can 
vary by product and are prescribed by regulation. 
Mortality, morbidity, lapse and expense 
assumptions are based on the experience studies, 
allowing for Risk Margin as prescribed by the 
Regulator. The Company exercises significant 
judgment in making appropriate assumptions.
 
The judgments exercised in the valuation of 
insurance contract liabilities affect the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements as insurance 
contract benefits and insurance contract liabilities. 

No fair value reserve has been recognised under 
Insurance Contract Liability, considering the 
directive issued by Beema Samiti dated 2075/09/12, 
since no profit is determined under Statement of 
Other Comprehensive Income (SOOCI) for each of 
the years. 

3.12.2 Liability Adequacy Test
The company evaluates the adequacy of its 
insurance contract liabilities at least annually. 
Liability adequacy is assessed by portfolio of 
contracts in accordance with the company’s 
manner of acquiring, servicing and measuring the 
profitability of its insurance contracts.
 
For Life insurance contracts, insurance contract 
liabilities, reduced by value of business acquired on 
acquired insurance contracts, are compared with 
the gross premium valuation calculated on a best 
estimate basis, as of the valuation date. If there is 
a deficiency, the unamortised balance of value of 
business acquired on acquired insurance contracts 
are written down to the extent of the deficiency. If 
a deficiency exists, the net liability is increased by 
the amount of the remaining deficiency.

Significant judgment is exercised in determining 
the level of aggregation at which liability adequacy 
testing is performed and in selecting best estimate 
assumptions. The judgments exercised in liability 
adequacy testing affect amounts recognised in 
the financial statements as commission and other 
acquisition expenses and insurance contract 
benefits and insurance and investment contract 
liabilities.
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At each reporting date, an assessment is made of 
whether the recognised Life insurance liabilities 
are adequate, net of related Present Value of In-
force by using liability adequacy test as laid out 
under a Gross Premium Valuation method. The 
liability value is adjusted to the extent that it is 
insufficient to meet future benefits and expensed. 
In performing the liability adequacy test, following 
basis are considered which are summarised as 
follows:

A. The accounting policy for liability 
testing including the frequency and nature 
of testing 
The liability is computed as per the actuarial 
valuation directive of Beema Samiti for life 
insurance business 2065. The statutory liability is 
computed on a yearly basis, at the end of every 
financial year. 

B. The cash flow considered
The various benefits considered include Death 
Benefit, Survival Benefit and Maturity Benefit. 
Cash flows are projected in accordance with 
the product specifications for each plan. Death 
related cash flows are projected for protection 
plans, whereas both death and maturity benefit 
related cash flows are projected for endowment 
products. Similarly, survival benefits and other 
benefits are projected in accordance with the 
product specifications. The credit of reinsurance 
is considered in the computation of reserves by 
allowing for cash flows pertaining to reinsurance at 
policy level. Reinsurance premiums are considered 
as outgo and recovery from reinsurer on expected 
claims are considered as income while calculating 
the reserve for each policy.

Detailed information for such is provided under 
Section 4 of the Actuarial Valuation Report as at 
16.07.2019 issued separately.

C. Valuation method and assumptions

VALUATION METHODOLOGY
A. individual business
i. The mathematical reserves are calculated at 

policy level for all in-force policies using Cash 
flow method.

ii. The Gross Premium Valuation (GPV) method has 
been used to calculate mathematicalReserves. 
lt is calculated by discounting the prospective 
net cash flows under each policy. The net cash 
flows at each duration is the sum of various 

outgoes e.g. death outgo, rider outgo (if any), 
expense outgo, commission outgo, maturity 
outgo, survival outgo, surrender outgo less 
income cash-flows such as premium and 
investment income.

Mathematical Reserves = PV of expected Maturity Outgo (including 
bonuses, if any)

 Plus PV of expected survival (money back) Outgo 
(including bonuses, if any)

 Plus PV of expected death Outgo (including 
bonuses, if any)

 Plus PV of expected expenses
 Plus PV of expected renewal commission
 Less PV of expected future premium income
 Less PV of expected investment income

iii. Under this method, benefits outgo also 
includes existing accrued bonuses as well as 
future expected reversionary and terminal 
bonuses, if any.

iv. The liability so obtained, if negative, is subject 
to zeroization at policy level as at date of 
valuation. Hence, no credit has been taken for 
negative reserves for prudency.

v. Surrender value floor have been applied as at 
valuation date on the reserve to ensure that it 
is at least equal to surrender value.

vi. No allowances have been made for future 
tax payouts on policyholder bonuses and 
no provision have been made for future 
shareholder transfers.

vii.  The credit of any [loan disbursed and due on 
the NLIC policies are not taken while valuing 
mathematical reserves.

viii. No credit has been taken for reinsurance while 
arriving at reserves.

ix. There are no explicit options and guarantees 
in the products

B. Group business
x. The Company has confirmed that no product 

sold under this category. Hence, zero value 
have been placed on this business.

C. Rider business
xi. The Company sold following riders along with 

various plans:
a. Accident Death Benefit: Under this rider, 

accidental death benefit becomes payable in 
case death occur due to accident.

b. Permanent Total Disability (PTD): This rider 
provides extra benefit in case either of the 
following PTD condition is applicable:

• Total and permanent toss of sight in both eyes
• Loss or total and permanent loss of use of 

both hands from the wrist joint
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•  Loss or total and permanent loss of use of 
both feet from the ankle joint

•  Loss or total and permanent loss of use of one 
hand from the wrist joint and of one foot from 
the ankle joint

• Loss or total and permanent loss of use of 
one hand from the wrist joint and total and 
permanent toss of sight in one eye

c. Premium Waiver Benefit: lf this rider is chosen 
and if the proposer dies/disabled then all the 
future premiums are waived off. The maturity 
benefits and survival benefits are payable as 
per the plan’s terms and conditions.

d. Critical illness Rider: This is a new rider and 
introduced in this financial year only. The 
rider provides the protection to policyholders 
on their being diagnosed with critical illness 
condition as specified in the plan during the 
term of the policy. A total of 18 critical illness 
condition are covered in this plan’

e. Cash option: This additional benefit was 
available with product 52 (closed to NB). Under 
this rider on payment of additional premium 
future benefit payment would be advanced.

f. SLB (Start in Life Benefit): This additional 
benefit was also available with product 52 
(closed to NB). Under this rider on payment 
of additional premium an additional death 
benefit would be payable on Maturity.

xii. For all the riders, a provision equivalent to 
Unearned Premium Reserve method on a 
1/365 basis is held.

D. Paid-up Policies
xiii. Policy can be converted in to Paid-up status 

after completing of two years from the date of 
commencement subject to premium payment 
and policy terms and conditions. After making 
a policy paid-up, it will not participate in 
profits.

Paid Up Sum Assured = Base Sum Assured * 
(No, of premium received/No, of premiums 
payable during the term of the policy)

xiv.  Paid-up policies have been valued using the 
same methodology as for in force premium 
paying policies using gross premium valuation 
with no allowance for future premiums and 
future bonuses. The expense allowance for 
maintenance expenses is made explicitly (but 
tower than premium paying policy).

xv. The reserves are calculated on Paid up sum 
assured (reduced sum assured).

E. Lapsed Policies
xvi. There are lapsed policies who have stopped 

paying premium(s) but under which a liability 
exists or may arise in future. We have received 
1,72,735 policies which are in lapse status as at 
July 16, 2019.

xvii. A provision is held towards the liability that 
may arise from the policies that may revive 
in the future. As per circular M/070/71 dated 
2070109t25, issued by Beema Samiti, lapsed 
policies can be revived at any time irrespective 
of when the policy had lapsed. Therefore, the 
provision is held towards all the lapsed policies 
within the policy term.

xviii. As per the recent reinstatement experience, 
we have analyzed that only around 4% of 
polices are getting reinstated. All lapsed 
policies are run as in.force policies and a 
provision equal to 10% of the reserve is held. 
The revival experience may change in future 
year depending on the management actions 
to improve the persistency. The expected 
policy revival of 10% may be reviewed subject 
to the Company undertaking a detailed revival 
experience study going ahead.

xix. The Lapse provision as at 16-Jut-2019 is NPR 
872 million.

F. Sub- standard lives
xx. There is an additional mortality risk in respect 

of policies which are rated up on account 
of occupation hazard, over/ underweight, 
smoking history, previous/ current heath 
condition or geographical conditions. Extra 
premiums are charged for the higher mortality 
morbidity risks on such policies.

xxi. The extra premium received is held as 
provision towards extra mortality reserve. An 
amount equal to NPR 166m has been kept as 
provision in respect of such policies.

G. Other reserves
xxii. Extended cover in whole life plan: in whole life 

plan, where policies have matured and only 
life cover is continuing separate provisioning 
have been made for such policies. The 
company have provided data for such policies 
separately. Same assumptions have been used 
as in the base plan and a provision of NPR 39.7 
mn have been made in respect of 860 policies.
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xxiii. Premium waiver benefit: An additional 
provision (other than provision for 
survival/maturity) have been made separately 
for policies in claim (availing premium waiver 
benefit) which is equal to sum of outstanding 
premium to be payable in respect of these 
policies. An additional provision of NPR 34 
mn have been made in respect of total 402 
policies under PWB claim status.

H. Other Global reserves
xxiv. There may be operational risks tike data 

errors, frauds, epidemics/pandemics etc 
which may require additional payouts. Hence, 
an additional provision of NPR 500 mn has 
been made in this respect for any unforeseen 
events and issues.

xxv. Other Methodology Considerations:

• Effective Date: Except where otherwise 
stated, all figures quoted in this report are as 
at July 16, 2019 and make no allowance for any 
developments after the date.

• Business: The statutory valuation is computed 
for alt in-force business as at July 16, 2019. 
No new business has been considered for the 
purpose of this report

• Projection Period: Cash-flows have been 
projected until maturity or extended term 
beyond maturity for alt business, covering 
the full lifetime of the underlying policyholder 
liability

• Reporting Basis: Unless otherwise stated, 
amount presented in this report are in 
Nepalese Rupee (NPR). Values in some of the 
tables in this report may not be additive due 
to rounding.

• Exclusions: Taxes have been excluded for the 
purpose of this report.

• Going Concern Basis: All values have been 
determined in accordance with a view of the 
“most probable” future experience and on a 
“going concern” basis. In doing so, it has been 
assumed that the future management of the 
Company will continue in a mannerConsistent 
with the current management of the Company.

Detailed information for Cash Flow consideration is 
provided under Section 4 of the Actuarial Valuation 
Report as at 16.07.2019 issued separately.

3.13 Provision for unexpired risk:
Provision for unexpired risk reserve includes 
provision created for Term Life Insurance as 
specified by actuary. However, no such provisions 
have been made for other policies. Changes 
brought about in Provision for unexpired risk 
reserve from year to year, as certified by the 
actuary, are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss Account. 

Provision for unexpired risk is reported under Note 
12 as Insurance Contract Liability. 

3.14 Insurance Claim Payable 
Provision for Claims Incurred but Not Reported 
(IBNR) is provided on the basis of actuarial 
valuation report prepared while evaluating insurer’s 
liabilities. Provision of 115% of outstanding claim, 
though not in strict compliance with NFRS, has 
been made as per section 15(d) of Insurance 
Regulation 2049 also on account specific direction 
given by Beema Samiti on Poush 12, 2075. 
Outstanding Claim as at Asadh 31, 2076 (also 
Asadh 32, 2075) are reported under Note 12 as 
Insurance Contract Liability.

3.15 Employee Benefit Obligation

3.15.1 Employee benefits 
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment 
benefit plan that defines an amount of benefit that 
an employee will receive on retirement, usually 
dependent on one or more factors such as age, 
years of service and compensation.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment 
benefit plan under which the company pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity. The company 
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay 
further contributions if the fund does not hold 
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits 
relating to employee service in the current and 
prior periods. 

The liability recognized in the Statement of 
Financial Position in respect of defined benefit 
plans is the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the end of the financial reporting 
period, together with adjustments for actuarial 
gains or losses from experience adjustments and 
changes in actuarial assumptions and past service 
costs. 
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The defined benefit obligation is calculated 
annually by a qualified actuary using the Projected 
Unit Credit method. The present value of the 
defined benefit obligation is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash outflows 
using interest rates of high quality corporate 
bonds that are denominated in the currency 
in which the benefits will be paid and that have 
terms to maturity that approximate the terms of 
the related liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions 
are charged or credited to the equity in the OCI in 
the period in which they arise.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in 
the Income Statement.

Gratuity
The company calculates the gratuity amount at 
the rate of 8.33% of basic salary every month as 
per the requirement of the Labour Act, 2074 from 
September 3, 2017. For the period prior to the 
implementation of Labour Act, 2074, gratuity was 
calculated as per the provision of staff bylaws. The 
liability is recognized in the Statement of Financial 
Position in respect of gratuity amount calculated as 
above, at the end of the financial reporting period 
by charging the additional liability recognized 
during the year to Statement of Profit or Loss. The 
company contributes the amount to the CIT to 
match the contribution amount with the liability 
recognized in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Leave Benefit:
Short term benefits to employees are recognized on 
accrual basis. Salaries in lieu of leave that are short 
term in nature are recognized on accrual basis. 

Long term provision for leave is made as per 
actuarial valuation. The details calculation of Leave 
Benefits as per NAS 19 provided by Actuarial 
Valuator is illustrated below;

Actuarial Valuation of Leave Pay (NFRS SOFP)
Description 2075/76 2074/75

Projected Benefits Obligation 51,217,586 43,602,368 

Amount To be Recognized in the P/L (NFRS) 2075/76 2074/75

Opening Balance of leave obligation 43,602,368 31,533,062

Addition (b/F) 26,240,110 28,732,149

Paid (18,624,892) (16,662,843)

Closing Balance 51,217,586 43,602,368

3.16 Other Financial Liabilities
These mainly include salary/bonus payable to 
employees, provident fund/ citizen investment 
trust payable and other liabilities (sundry 
creditors). These are recognised on accrual basis. 
The fair value of deposit liabilities approximates 
its carrying amount because of its short term 
maturities as such no fair value treatment for the 
same are given. 

3.17 Other Liabilities 
These include deposits received by the company 
from policy holders, deposits received from tenants 
of investment property and other miscellaneous 
receipt and also include service charge payable, 
TDS on commission payable to agents other 
similar liabilities. 

These are recognised on accrual basis. The fair 
value of deposit liabilities approximates its carrying 
amount because of its short term maturities as such 
no fair value treatment for the same are given. 

3.18 Insurance Payable 
These include premium payable to reinsurer, 
agent commission and incentive payable. These 
are recognised on accrual basis. The fair value of 
deposit liabilities approximates its carrying amount 
because of its short term maturities as such no fair 
value treatment for the same are given. 

3.19 Other Provisions
Provision includes provision for staff bonus and 
provision for bad debts. 

Provisions are recognised when the company 
has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. Where the company expects 
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the 
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset 
but only when the reimbursement is virtually 
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certain. The expense relating to any provision is 
presented in the Statement of Financial Position 
net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the 
time value of money is material, provisions are 
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, 
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
Where discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised 
as an interest expense.

3.20 Share Capital
Financial instruments issued are classified as 
equity when there is no contractual obligation 
to transfer cash, other financial assets or issue 
available number of own equity instruments. 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue 
of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net 
of taxes from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference 
shares classified as equity are recognised in equity 
in the period in which they are declared.
Share Issue Cost directly attributable to the issue 
of equity instruments are shown in equity as a 
deduction from the proceeds, net of tax.

3.21 Share Premium
These include Share premium collected by the 
company by issuing shares. The bonus shares 
declared and approved in the Annual General 
Meeting for FY 2074/75 has been accounted 
for during the year FY 2075/76 and the resulting 
adjustment is made from the share premium 
account. Share premium account are disclosed at 
historical cost basis. 

3.22 Reserve and Surplus 
These include revenue reserve carried forward 
from previous year plus profit for the year and 
dividend paid out as well as adjustment arising 
from prior year transactions specially pertaining to 
tax adjustments. These also include adjustments 
in the profit as per NFRS financials and GAAP 
financials for the period by transferring to 
Regulatory Reserve and also carried out as per 
direction of Beema Samiti dated 2075/09/12. The 
profit for the year, hence reported under both the 
set of financials are same for each of the years 
covered by the financial statements. 

3.23 Catastrophic Reserve
A catastrophic reserve equal to 10% of the net 
profit (GAAP), is to be appropriated as per the 
circular issued by Beema Samiti dated 2071.6.08 

also in line with its direction dated 2075/09/12. 
Total reserve created during FY 2075/76 amounting 
to Rs. 11,82,04,480.00 [being profit of 10% of GAAP 
profit for year] is shown as an addition during the 
year under Note 19.

3.24 Regulatory Reserve
As per Directive of Beema Samiti dated 2075/09/12, 
any excess profit for the year in the NFRS financial 
statements in comparison to profit as per GAAP 
financials needs to be transferred to regulatory 
reserve. In consideration to the directive, such 
difference [also reflected in the reconciliation 
statements] are accounted under regulatory 
reserve and are shown separately under Note 19.4. 

Total regulatory reserve outstanding at end of FY 
2075/76 amounted to Rs. 23,77,89,071.00

3.25 Lease
The determination of whether an arrangement is, 
or contains, a lease is based on the substance of 
the arrangement at the inception date, whether 
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the 
use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is 
not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Finance leases which transfer all risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of the leased item 
substantially to the Company are capitalised at 
the commencement of the lease at the fair value of 
the leased property or if lower, at the present value 
of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments 
are apportioned between finance charges and 
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a 
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance 
of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as 
interest expenses in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. As at the Balance Sheet date, the Company 
does not have any finance lease contracts.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an 
operating expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
As per the Carve Outs (Carve out No.3) issued by 
Accounting standards Board of Nepal (ASB) dated 
November 20, 2019 (Mangsir 04, 2076) allowed 
alternative treatment for operating lease as below 
which is followed in the current FY 2018/19:
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Lease payments under an operating lease shall be 
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term unless either: 
(a) another systematic basis is more representative 
of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the 
payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or 
(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to 
increase in line with expected general inflation to 
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary 
cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary 
because of factors other than general inflation, 
then this condition is not met. 

3.26 Revenue Recognition 

3.26.1 Insurance related revenue 
The premium income is recognised on cash basis 
and net of reinsurance premium. 

Gross premium earned by the company is adjusted 
with the reinsurance premium ceded with reinsurer 
on accrual basis.

3.26.2 Reinsurance Contract [Ceded and 
Claim] 
Contracts entered into by the Company 
with reinsurers under which the Company is 
compensated for losses on one or more contracts 
issued by the Company and that meet the 
classification requirements for insurance contracts 
are classified as reinsurance contracts held. 
Contracts that do not meet these classification 
requirements are classified as financial assets. 
Insurance contracts entered into by the Company 
under which the contract holder is another insurer 
(inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance 
contracts.

The benefits to which the Company is entitled 
under its reinsurance contracts held are 
recognized as reinsurance assets. These assets 
consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, 
as well as longer term receivables that are 
dependent on the expected claims and benefits 
arising under the related reinsured insurance 
contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to 
reinsurers are measured consistently with the 
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance 
contracts and in accordance with the terms of 
each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities 
are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance 
contracts and are recognized as an expense 
when due. It is accounted on accrual basis. The 

proportion attributable to subsequent periods is 
deferred as a prepaid reinsurance premiums.

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets 
for impairment on a quarterly basis. If there is 
objective evidence that the reinsurance asset 
is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying 
amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable 
amount and recognizes that impairment loss in the 
profit or loss. The Company gathers the objective 
evidence that a reinsurance asset is impaired using 
the same process adopted for financial assets held 
at amortized cost. The impairment loss is also 
calculated following the same method used for 
these financial assets.

3.26.3 Investment income 
Investment income includes interest income 
form loans to policy holders, agents etc. and also 
includes dividend income from investment in 
shares of various entities and rental income earned 
from the investment property.

3.26.3.1 Interest income and expenditure
Interest income is recognised on the time 
proportionate basis using EIR irrespective of 
the classification under NAS 39. Interest income 
from a financial asset is recognized when it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the company and the amount of income can be 
measured reliably. The amortisation of discount / 
premium is also treated as an interest income.

Interest income and expense for all interest-
bearing financial instruments, including financial 
instruments measured at fair value through profit 
or loss, are recognized within ‘investment income’ 
and ‘finance costs’ in the profit or loss using the 
effective interest rate method.

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis. 
Interest receivable from investment, policy loan 
and others are recognised when contractual 
right to receive is established. The company has 
charged 10% p.a. interest in the late premium 
payment and loans against insurance policies.

3.26.3.2 Dividend income 
Dividend income is recognised when the right 
to receive payment is established irrespective of 
its classification of FVTPL or AFS which is the ex-
dividend date for equity instruments.



126 jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&%÷@)&^

3.26.4 Fee and Commission Income 

Policy administration charges, other contract fees 
and trust management fees are recognised on an 
accrual basis. If the fees are for services provided 
in future periods then they are deferred and 
recognised over those future periods.

3.26.5 Fair value gains and losses 
Fair value gains and losses on AFS securities 
are recognised in the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income until such instrument is 
derecognised or impaired. Fair value gains and 
losses on financial assets at FVTPL, are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.26.6 Realised gains and losses 
Realised gains and losses recorded in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss include gains and 
losses on financial assets, property, plant and 
equipment.

Gains and losses on the sale of investments are 
calculated as the difference between net sales 
proceeds and the original cost, amortised cost or 
carrying amount, depending on the classification 
of the assets and are recorded on occurrence of 
the sale transaction.

3.27 Claims, benefits and expenses 
recognition 

3.27.1 Gross claims and benefits
Gross claims and benefits for insurance contracts 
include the cost of all claims arising during the year 
including internal and external claims handling 
costs that are directly related to the processing 
and settlement of claims and policyholder bonuses 
declared on contracts as well as changes in the 
gross valuation of insurance and liabilities. Death 
claims and surrenders are recorded on the basis 
of notifications received. Maturities and annuity 
payments are recorded when due.

Additional provision of 15% of outstanding claim 
[i.e. a total of 115% of total claim] is also made in 
compliance with the requirements of section 15(d) 
of Insurance Regulation 2049.

3.27.2 Reinsurance claims 
Reinsurance claims are recognised when the 
related gross insurance claim is recognised 
according to the terms of the relevant contract.

3.27.3 Gross Change in Contract Liability 
and Unexpired Risk 
Change in life insurance contract liability and 
unexpired risk are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss based on actuarial valuation made 
in line with the directions provided by Beema 
Samiti. The changes in insurance contract liability 
during the year are summarized as follows;

Particulars Endowment 
Life Insurance 
Policies

Anticipated 
Life

Jeevan 
Shahara Life 
Insurance 
Policies

Jeevan 
Sarathi Life 
Insurance 
Policy

Non-Partic-
ipating Plus 
Expat

Total

Life Fund/ UPR* 37,713,053,122 13,549,743,983 13,829,828,560 658,769,080 314,825,633 66,066,220,378

Provisions (including Cost 
of Bonus)

36,905,323,020 13,117,847,282 13,528,017,956 502,885,326 368,773,451 64,422,847,034

Amount to be transferred 
to shareholders

592,961,566 141,898,735 175,121,986 15,087,655 -53,947,818 871,122,124

Carried forward Surplus 214,768,536 289,997,966 126,688,618 140,796,099 - 772,251,220

Cost of Bonus
(policyholder)

5,336,654,094 1,727,088,616 1,576,097,873 135,788,894 - 8,775,629,476

Change in unexpired risk reserve during the year is as follows:

Particular  Amount 

Opening Risk Provision 293,931,552

Amount transferred to Profit & Loss account 74,814,899

Closing Risk Provision 368,773,451
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3.27.4 General Expenses 
All the general expenses including agent 
commission, medical fee, net service charges, 
other direct expenses and management expenses 
are recognised on accrual basis when the company 
is obligated to make the payments, either legally 
or constructively. 

All the management expense (100%) is charged to 
the Statement of Profit or Loss Account.

3.27.5 Staff Bonus
As per Bonus Act 2031, company’s staffs are 
entitled to bonus of 10% of profit earned by the 
company during the year. Provision for staff bonus 
has been calculated as per GAAP i.e. 10% of Profit 
earned by the company during the year as per 
GAAP. 

3.27.6 Taxes 
The tax expense for the period comprises current 
tax and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognised in the 
OCI or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is 
also recognised in the OCI or directly in equity, 
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the 
basis of the Nepal income tax laws at the end of 
the reporting period. Management periodically 
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect 
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is 
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions 
where appropriate.

3.27.6.1 Current Taxes
Current income tax is calculated by the company 
using the provisions of Income tax Act 2058 and 
income tax regulation 2059 as applicable in Nepal. 
Current tax payable (or recoverable) is based on 
the taxable profit for the year.
Current income tax is the amount of income 
tax payable on the taxable profit for the year 
determined in accordance with the relevant tax 
legislation and any adjustment to tax payable 
or receivable in respect of previous years. It is 
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also 
includes any tax arising from dividends.

TAX SETTLEMENT STATUS 
The company income tax assessments by the 
tax authorities are final and settled up to the 

income year 2070/71. The Income years whose 
settlements are still due where the company has 
made provision as per its self-assessment returns 
and amount of advance tax paid are as under:

Fiscal Year Self-assessment 
Returns

Advance Tax paid

2071/72 (34,609,686.00)  582,926,527.00

2072/73 33,732,054.00 842,256,090.68

2073/74 159,281,064.00 1,179,735,125.40

2074/75 531,053,098.00 1,758,156,928.76

2075/76* 321,947,086* 1,711,099,590.00

*Note: (Self-Assessment not made; only provision made)

TAX ASSESSMENT STATUS [LITIGATION]
IRD has determined the additional tax of 
Rs.45,753,719.76 of FY 2062/63, FY 2063/64, FY 
2064/65, FY 2066/67, FY 2067/68, FY 2068/69 and 
FY 2069/70 in which the company has again sued 
in the court. Inland Revenue Department has 
determined the additional tax of Rs.32,865,628.99 
of FY 2070/71.

3.28 Accounting estimates and the 
use of judgement
The company makes estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates 
and judgments are continually evaluated and 
based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4. RISK MANAGEMENT 

4.1 Financial Management Risk
The primary source of financial risk to an insurer 
arises from its investment exposures and investment 
activities. Thus, the investment portfolios maintain 
a prudent approach in its investment strategy and 
investment exposures to ensure that investment 
returns are optimised on a risk adjusted basis and 
to ensure the Company operates within its defined 
risk appetite.

Risk appetite statements communicate the 
parameters and boundaries within which the 
business unit has opted to operate in relation to 
the identified financial risks. In the Company, the 
risk appetite framework has expressed the business 
unit’s appetite as regards capital risk, liquidity risk, 
credit risk and market risk. The exposures and 
management information pertaining to these 
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four risk aspects are within the scope of identified 
governance committees of the business based 
on the required technical expertise to provide 
effective oversight. Management information 
is submitted periodically to review and monitor 
these risks at these governance committees that 
convene as per their defined frequency of review.

Management of financial risks falls under the 
purview of the Committee, which monitors the 
overall exposure of the Company to financial risks. 
Total investments of the Company are managed 
separately through segregated funds with due 
consideration to their respective risk profiles, 
stakeholders and objectives. The Company keeps 
investment exposures within pre-determined 
strategic asset allocation limits, which are defined 
in order to generate superior investment returns 
without excessive exposure to high risk assets.

4.2 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the uncertainty, emanating from 
business operations, investments or financing 
activities, whether a company will have the ability 
to meet payment obligations in a full and timely 
manner under current or stressed conditions. 

Liquidity adequacy is a measure or assessment 
of the ability of a company to meet payment 
obligations in a full and timely manner within a 
defined time horizon. It is a function of its sources 
of liquidity relative to its liquidity needs. Liquidity 
sources can be internal and external, available 
immediately or within the defined time horizon, 
and includes all funds, assets and arrangements 
that allow an insurer to meet its liquidity needs. 
Liquidity needs include all current and expected 
payment obligations within the defined time 
horizon.

The Company has determined that an appropriate 
time horizon within which it must be able to meet 
its liquidity needs is twelve months, being generally 
acknowledged as the critical period for companies 
to weather a stressed liquidity environment if they 
are to survive. It is expected that the Company will 
be able to meet its obligations in both current and 
stressed conditions for at least this time frame.

The table below summaries the maturity profile of 
the company assets and liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period:

Description  Carrying Value  Up to 1 year  1-3 years  3-5 years  5-10 years  Over 10 years  No maturity  Total 

 date 

5.1.1 Financial assets at 
amortized value - Bonds with 
additional cost

        

6.5% Gov. Development Bond 
2076 “Ka”

 44,861,857  44,861,857       44,861,857 

8.5% Citizen Bank Debenture 
2077

 9,357,971  9,357,971       9,357,971 

Total 54,219,828  54,219,828  -  -  -  -  - 54,219,828 

5.1.2 Financial assets at 
carrying value - Bonds without 
additional cost

        

8.5% Citizen Bank Debenture 
2077

94,006,000  94,006,000      94,006,000 

8% Nepal Investment Bank 
Debenture 2077

 100,000,000  100,000,000      100,000,000 

8% Himalayan Bank Debenture 
2077

 100,000,000  100,000,000      100,000,000 

8% Everest Bank Debenture 
2079

80,000,000   80,000,000     80,000,000 

8% Ebl Debenture 2078 110,770,000   110,770,000     110,770,000 

8% Bank Of Kathmandu 
Debenture 2076

50,000,000  50,000,000      50,000,000 

8% Bok Bond 2079 104,980,000   104,980,000     104,980,000 

8% Siddhartha Bank Deben-
ture 2076

50,000,000  50,000,000      50,000,000 

7.5% Sbl Debenture 2078 114,092,000   114,092,000     114,092,000 

8% Laxmi Bank Debenture 
2076

86,000,000  86,000,000      86,000,000 

8% Nepal Sbi Bank Debenture 
2079

60,000,000   60,000,000     60,000,000 
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7% Sanima Debenture 2079 169,850,000   169,850,000     169,850,000 

Development Bond 2077 250,000,000  250,000,000      250,000,000 

Development Bond 2081 100,000,000   100,000,000    100,000,000 

10.25% Global IME Bank 
Debenture 2080/81

50,255,000   50,255,000    50,255,000 

10.25% NB Bank Debenture 
2085

50,000,000    50,000,000   50,000,000 

10.50% Nepal investment 
Bond 2082

184,683,000   184,683,000   184,683,000 

Nepal SBI(12.5%NepalSBI 
Debenture2078)

15,843,000   15,843,000     15,843,000 

         

Total 1,770,479,000 730,006,000 655,535,000 150,255,000 234,683,000 -  - 1,770,479,000 

5.1.3 Held to Maturity Financial 
Assets ( Fixed Deposit)

        - 

Bank Of Kathmandu Ltd 2,870,000,000 20,000,000 800,000,000 1,550,000,000 500,000,000 - - 2,870,000,000 

Century Commercial Bank 
Limited 

224,500,000 224,500,000 -  -  -  - 224,500,000 

Citizens Bank International 
Limited 

5,302,200,000 1,062,200,000 200,000,000 640,000,000 3,400,000,000  -  5,302,200,000 

Civil Bank Limited 415,100,000 15,100,000  -  - 400,000,000  -  415,100,000 

Deva Bikas Bank Ltd 479,400,000 479,400,000  -  -  -  -  479,400,000 

Everest Bank Ltd 4,125,500,000 125,500,000 200,000,000 700,000,000 3,100,000,000  -  4,125,500,000 

Gandaki Bikash Bank Ltd 58,500,000 58,500,000  -  -  -  -  58,500,000 

Garima Bikas Bank Ltd 175,000,000 175,000,000  -  -  -  -  175,000,000 

Global IME Bank Limited 3,865,000,000 105,000,000  - 2,710,000,000 1,050,000,000  -  3,865,000,000 

Himalayan Bank Limited 1,430,000,000 80,000,000  - 1,350,000,000  -  -  1,430,000,000 

Janata Bank Limited 813,500,000 163,500,000  - 650,000,000  -  -  813,500,000 

Jyoti Bikash Bank Limited 719,800,000 719,800,000  -  -  -  -  719,800,000 

Kailash Bikash Bank Ltd 543,300,000 543,300,000  -  -  -  -  543,300,000 

Kamana Sewa Bikash Bank Ltd 515,800,000 515,800,000  -  -  -  -  515,800,000 

Kumari Bank Limited 2,250,100,000 550,100,000  -  - 1,700,000,000  -  2,250,100,000 

Laxmi Bank Ltd 1,507,500,000 57,500,000 700,000,000 750,000,000  -  -  1,507,500,000 

Lumbini Bikash Bank Ltd 450,000,000 450,000,000  -  -  -  -  450,000,000 

Machapucchechre Bank 
Limited 

979,000,000 359,000,000  - 20,000,000 600,000,000  -  979,000,000 

Mega Bank limited 1,280,000,000 880,000,000  - 400,000,000  -  -  1,280,000,000 

Muktinath Bikash Bank Ltd 753,000,000 753,000,000  -  -  -  -  753,000,000 

Nabil Bank Limited 2,610,000,000 10,000,000  - 1,100,000,000 1,500,000,000  -  2,610,000,000 

NCC Bank Limited 306,100,000 306,100,000  -  -  -  -  306,100,000 

Nepal Bangladesh Bank 
Limited 

1,700,000,000  - 1,000,000,000 700,000,000  -  -  1,700,000,000 

Nepal Investment Bank Ltd 1,120,000,000 400,000,000 20,000,000 700,000,000  -  -  1,120,000,000 

Nepal SbI Bank Ltd 2,600,000,000  -  - 350,000,000 2,250,000,000  -  2,600,000,000 

Prabhu Bank Limited 1,416,700,000 236,700,000 50,000,000  - 1,130,000,000  -  1,416,700,000 

Prime Commercial Bank Limited 2,471,000,000 21,000,000 100,000,000 300,000,000 2,050,000,000  -  2,471,000,000 

Sanima Bank Limited 1,125,300,000 365,300,000  - 460,000,000 300,000,000  -  1,125,300,000 

Shangrila Development Bank 
Ltd (Bikash)

209,000,000 209,000,000  -  -  -  -  209,000,000 

Siddhartha Bank Limited 3,493,000,000 293,000,000  - 450,000,000 2,750,000,000  -  3,493,000,000 

Standard Chartered Bank 
Nepal Limited 

100,000,000 100,000,000  -  -  -  -  100,000,000 

Sunrise Bank Limited 1,250,000,000  -  - 650,000,000 600,000,000  -  1,250,000,000 

         

Total 47,158,300,000 9,278,300,000 3,070,000,000 13,480,000,000 21,330,000,000  -  - 47,158,300,000 

5.2 Policy loan, Agents Loans 
& Staff Loans

        - 

Policy Loan- Surakshit Jeevan  4,160,211,940 - - - - -  4,160,211,940  4,160,211,940 

Policy Loan-Jeevan Jyoti  982,299,552 - - - - -  982,299,552  982,299,552 

Policy Loan- Dhana Barsha 15yrs  181,721,419 - - - - -  181,721,419  181,721,419 

Policy Loan- Dhana Barsha 
20yrs

 30,464,726 - - - - -  30,464,726  30,464,726 
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Policy Loan-Jeevan Sambridhi 
15yrs

 2,267,364,594 - - - - -  2,267,364,594  2,267,364,594 

Policy Loan-Jeevan Sambridhi 
20yrs

 179,632,231 - - - - -  179,632,231  179,632,231 

Policy Loan-Naulo Dhana 
Barsha

 40,187,641 - - - - -  40,187,641  40,187,641 

Policy Loan-Naulo Jiwan 
Sambridhi

 1,367,658,853 - - - - -  1,367,658,853  1,367,658,853 

Policy Loan-Child Education  67,962,464 - - - - -  67,962,464  67,962,464 

Policy Loan- Jeevan Laxmi  75,812,202 - - - - -  75,812,202  75,812,202 

Policy Loan- Jeevan Sahara  2,323,042,807 - - - - -  2,323,042,807  2,323,042,807 

Policy Loan- Jeevan Sarathi  121,197,386 - - - - -  121,197,386  121,197,386 

Policy Loan-Saral Jeevan  915,000 - - - - -  915,000  915,000 

Policy Loan-Jeevan Unnati  91,317,168 - - - - -  91,317,168  91,317,168 

Policy Loan On Rural Endow-
ment Assurance

 75,000 - - - - -  75,000  75,000 

Loan To Agents 518,411,222 - - - - - 518,411,222 518,411,222 

Home Loan Scheme against 
policy

36,669,640     36,669,640  36,669,640 

Staff Loans 148,574,757  6,143  9,008  64,822  391,445 148,103,339  148,574,757

         

Total 12,593,518,602  6,143  9,008  64,822  391,445 184,772,979 12,408,274,205 12,593,518,602

5.3 Financial Assets at Fair 
Value Through P/L

        

Siddhartha Equity Oriented 
Scheme

9,279,059 9,279,059      9,279,059 

Nmb Sulav Investment Fund-1 3,917,857 3,917,857      3,917,857 

NIBL Samriddhi Fund-1 10,778,057  10,778,057     10,778,057 

Laxmi Value Fund-1 9,347,719 9,347,719      9,347,719 

Global Ime Samunnat Yojana-1 15,910,561  15,910,561     15,910,561 

Nabil Equity Fund 5,255,132   5,255,132    5,255,132 

Nmb Hybrid Fund-L1 6,328,539   6,328,539    6,328,539 

Nibl Pragati Fund 1,274,078   1,274,078    1,274,078 

Siddhartha Equity Fund 9,764,577    9,764,577   9,764,577 

Sanima Equity Fund 22,560,000   22,560,000    22,560,000 

Citizen Mutual Fund-1 20,360,000   20,360,000    20,360,000 

Ordinary Shares: Public 
Companies

4,142,986,067      4,142,986,067 4,142,986,067 

Total 4,257,761,645 22,544,635 26,688,618 55,777,748 9,764,577  - 4,142,986,067 4,257,761,645 

Liabilities         - 

Other Liabilities 820,883,747 820,883,747      820,883,747

Other Financial Liabilities 170,072,885 170,072,885      170,072,885

Insurance Payables 1,182,985,451 1,182,985,451      1,182,985,451

Insurance Claims Payable 915,393,217 915,393,217      915,393,217

Employee Benefit Obligation 127,682,437      127,682,437 127,682,437

Total Liabilities 3,217,017,737 3,089,335,300 - - - - 127,682,437 3,217,017,737

Controls in place to mitigate liquidity risk:

• Management of liquidity risk is governed 
by the Liquidity Risk Management Policy 
which is a component of the Company’s risk 
management framework and is incorporated 
in the Investment Mandates of the business. 
The Company defines liquidity risk appetite 
in terms of Liquidity Coverage Ratio which is 
defined for each core portfolio of the business. 

• The liquidity adequacy is reviewed quarterly 

by the Financial Risk Committee to ensure 
that the Company will be able to meet its 
obligations in both current and stressed 
conditions for the next twelve months. 

• The Company maintains a cash flow maturity 
profile within the investment portfolios of the 
Company in tandem with the risk appetite of 
each portfolio and cash flow needs. 

• Minimum liquidity levels are incorporated into 
the Investment Mandate of each portfolio and 
are monitored on a daily basis.
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4.4 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of adverse financial 
impact resulting from fluctuations in the level or 
volatility of prices of financial instruments and 
other market factors including interest rates, 
inflation and foreign-exchange rates. Market risk 
categories include interest rate risk, equity risk, 
foreign exchange risk, inflation risk, property risk, 
commodity risk and other risks. The Company’s 
primary source of market risks are interest rate risk 
and equity risk.

Although credit and liquidity risks are defined 
and managed as separate risks, the assessment 
of market risk does consider the interdependence 
between market risk and credit and liquidity risks 
(for example market losses caused by illiquidity 
issues, sovereign default or a default of a 
systemically important counterparty) and also the 
capital risk arising from market risk.

4.4.1 Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk of an adverse financial 
impact due to changes in the absolute level of 
interest rates. It is performed for reasonable 
possible movement in interest rates for this year 
with all other variables held constant, showing the 
impact on the profit before tax, equity and OCI

4.4.2 Equity Risk
Equity risk is the risk of adverse financial impact 
due to equity market dynamics (for example, 
individual spot price movement, index movement, 
volatility and correlation changes etc.). The equity 
price risk exposures relates to financial assets and 
financial liabilities which values will fluctuate as 
a result of changes in market prices, principally 
investments securities are held for the account of 
the investment linked business. 

Following analysis is performed for reasonable 
possible movement in key variables with all other 
variables held constant, showing the impact on 
profit before tax:

Particulars  Change % in 
equity price 

 Impact in Profit 
before tax 

Equity Price change - 10% (414,298,606.69)

Equity Price change -20%  (828,597,213.37)

*The above illustration is only prepared for adverse scenario, 
where market price is being moved in an unfavorable direction. 

4.3 Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk of adverse financial impact 
resulting from fluctuations in credit quality of third 
parties including default, rating transition and 
credit spread movements. Credit risk categories 
include default risk, spread risk and rating 
migration risk, each of which is defined below;

4.3.1 Spread risk 
The risk of an adverse financial outcome arising 
from changes in the level or volatility of third party 
credit spreads. Credit spread moves can be caused 
by credit concerns (improving or worsening) on the 
issuer or from market factors (such as risk appetite 
and liquidity within the market).

4.3.2 Default risk
The risk of an adverse financial outcome arising 
from one or more third party default events. A 
default event includes a delay in repayments 
or interest payments, restructuring of borrower 
repayments / interest schedule, bankruptcy 
and repudiation / moratorium (for example, for 
sovereign counterparties).

4.3.3 Rating migration risk 
The risk of an adverse financial outcome arising 
from a change in third party credit standing. As well 
as having a potential knock-on effect on spreads, 
rating movements can trigger solvency and 
accounting impacts and can drive management 
actions and the realisation of losses.

Controls in place to mitigate credit risk 
• The management of credit risk is governed by 

the Credit Risk Management Policy which is 
embedded within the Investment Policy and 
incorporated in the Investment Mandates of 
the business. 

• Single counterparty exposures are monitored 
based on the counterparty exposure 
in comparison to the net assets of the 
counterparty.

• All investments are denominated in Nepalese 
Rupees and the Company does not maintain 
any investment exposures to assets held 
overseas. 

• Minimum investment grade rating criteria been 
implemented for determining investment 
decisions. 

• The Company maintains a predominant 
exposure to Government securities and bonds 
and also investment in Category A Commercial 
banks within Nepal thus prudently managing 
credit default risk from these investments. 
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4.5 Risk oversight
Evaluating the impact of market risk, credit risk 
and liquidity risk are inbuilt into the investment 
decision making process. The market risk, credit 
risk and liquidity risk of the investment portfolios 
are monitored every month by a dedicated 
Committee, a management level governance 
oversight committee responsible to oversee 
investments.

The Board of Directors level governance 
oversight committee responsible to oversee 
investments is the Investment Committee which 
is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. 
The Investment Committee monitors the market 
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk of the investment 
portfolios every quarter. 

The capital risk of the Company is monitored by 
the Investment, Risk Management and Solvency 
Committee that convenes on at least on a monthly 
basis. The Committee also reviews the liquidity 
risk, credit risk and market risk of the investment 
portfolios.

4.6 Insurance Risk

4.6.1 Life Insurance 

4.6.1.1 Frequency and severity of claims 
For contracts where death is the insured risk, the 
most significant factors that could increase the 
overall frequency of claims are epidemics such 
as AIDS, SARS and a human form of avian flu or 
widespread changes in lifestyle. For contracts 
where survival is the insured risk, the most 
significant factor is continued improvement in 
medical science and social conditions that would 
increase longevity.

At present, these risks do not vary significantly 
in relation to the location of the risk insured by 
the Company. However, undue concentration of 
amounts could have an impact on the severity of 
benefit payments on a portfolio basis.

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits 
and fixed future premiums, there are no mitigating 
terms and conditions that reduce the insurance 
risk accepted. The Company manages these risks 
through its underwriting strategy and reinsurance 
arrangements.

The underwriting strategy is intended to ensure 
that the risks underwritten are well diversified 

in terms of type of risk and the level of insured 
benefits. Medical selection is also included in 
the Company’s underwriting procedures, with 
premiums varied to reflect the health condition 
and family medical history of the applicants. The 
Company has a retention limit of Rs 1 million on 
any single life insured. The Company reinsures 
the excess of the insured benefit over Rs 1 million 
for standard risks (from a medical point of view). 
Medically impaired lives are charged higher 
insurance premiums.

4.7 Sources of uncertainty in 
the estimation of future benefit 
payments and premium receipts 
Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit 
payments and premium receipts for long term 
insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability 
of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality 
and the variability in contract holder behaviour.

The Company uses appropriate base tables 
of standard mortality according to the type of 
contract being written. An investigation into the 
actual experience of the Company over the last 
five years is carried out and statistical methods are 
used to adjust the crude mortality rates to produce 
a best estimate of expected mortality for the 
future. Where data is sufficient to be credible, the 
statistics generated by the data are used without 
reference to a regulatory table. Where this is not 
the case, the best estimate of future mortality is 
based on standard regulatory tables adjusted for 
the Company’s overall experience. For contracts 
that insure survival, an adjustment is made for 
future mortality improvements based on trends 
identified in the continuous mortality investigations 
performed by international actuarial bodies. The 
Company maintains voluntary termination statistics 
to investigate the deviation of actual termination 
experience against assumptions. Statistical 
methods are used to determine appropriate 
termination rates. An allowance is then made for 
any trends in the data to arrive at a best estimate 
of future termination rates.

Process used to decide on assumptions 

A) MORTALITY / MORBIDITY 
Internal investigations covering a five year period 
are conducted by claim type, subdivided by age. 
From these investigations crude incidence rates are 
derived. Next, actual over expectation ratios are 
calculated and accordingly graded percentages of 
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the standard mortality table are used for the final 
assumptions.

B) PERSISTENCY 
An internal investigation is conducted by entry 
year and product type, subdivided by premium 
mode. From this investigation, crude persistency 
rates are derived, allowing for all of paid-up, 
lapse, surrender and revivals. Next, the weighted 
rates are assessed and smooth assumptions are 
set taking into account past trends and the future 
outlook.

C) INVESTMENT RETURNS 
Investment returns are set based on a long-
term basis by considering the future outlook of 
Government securities and other asset classes in 
the local market.

D) RENEWAL EXPENSE LEVEL AND INFLATION 
Renewal expense levels are set by way of an expense 
investigation into the expenses of the Company 
over the last calendar year, with each expense 
being classified as acquisition/maintenance and 
then being assigned a driver based on how it may 
develop into the future. The expense assumptions 
are verified for reasonableness against the latest 
three year business plan.

Inflation margins are set based on NRB’s 
economic projections.

5. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
The focus of capital management is to maintain a 
strong capital base to support the business and 
business growth, and to satisfy regulatory capital 
requirements at all times. In view of this the 
Company has established the following objectives, 
policies and approach;

• To maintain the required solvency level and 
provide security to policyholders.

• To allocate capital efficiently and support the 
growth of the business by ensuring that returns 
on capital employed meets the requirements 
of shareholders and policyholders.

• To maintain financial strength to support 
new business growth and to satisfy the 
requirements of the policyholders, regulators 
and stakeholders.

• To maintain healthy capital ratios in order to 
support business objectives and optimise 
shareholder value.

The Company seeks to optimise the structure and 
sources of capital to ensure that it consistently 
maximises returns to the shareholders and 
policyholders. The Company’s approach in 
managing capital includes managing assets, 
liabilities and risks in a coordinated manner, 
assessing shortfalls between reported and 
required capital levels on a regular basis and 
taking appropriate actions to strengthen 
the capital position of the Company in view 
of changes in economic conditions and risk 
characteristics. The primary source of capital used 
by the Company is equity shareholders’ funds. The 
capital requirements are routinely forecast on a 
periodic basis by the Management and the Board 
of Directors. The solvency margins are calculated 
on a monthly basis and shared with the Board 
of Directors on a quarterly basis. The Company 
maintains its capital base well above the minimum 
regulatory requirements Rs. 2 Billion. 

6. DECLARATION OF PROPOSED 
BONUS AND PROPOSED 
DIVIDEND
During the FY 2075/76, the company has declared 
Bonus Share of 31% of paid up capital Rs 
5,496,160,810.00 amounting NRs. 1,70,38,09,851, 
and cash dividend of 20.00% (including tax) 
amounting NRs. 1,099,149,719. The Bonus share 
was declared out of share premium balance of 
NRs. 1,750,911,560.00 

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share (EPS) amount are 
calculated by dividing the net profit attributable 
to shareholders by weighted average number of 
shares outstanding at the end of the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing 
the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders 
of the parent by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year, plus 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
that would be issued on the conversion of all the 
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary 
shares.

For the FY 2075/76, EPS of the company is Rs 20.
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8. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
The company has carried out transactions in the 
ordinary course of business on an arm’s length 
basis at commercial rates with parties who are 
defined as related parties as per NAS 24; Related 
Party Disclosures, except for the transactions with 
Key Management Personnel, which was govern by 
employee rules and regulations of the company 
uniformly applicable to all staffs. 

Following are identified as related party of the 
company under the requirement of NAS 24:

i. Substantial shareholders of the company and 
companies whose substantial share is held by 
the company.

ii. Post-employment benefit plan for the benefit 
of the employees.

iii. Key managerial personnel and their close 
family members if any.

8.1 Substantial shareholders of the 
company:
Following are the dividend paid to substantial 
shareholders of the company during the fiscal year 
out of dividend declared for the FY 2074.75:

S. 
No.

Name Cash Dividend as per 
19th AGM (2074.75)

1 Subhash Chandra Shanghai 68,192,417.72 

2 Anuj Agrawal 53,347,574.66 

3 Govinda Lal Shanghai 47,516,984.06 

4 Purushottam Lal Shanghai 37,636,328.31 

5 Pawan Kuwar Golyan 1,812,718.00 

6 Vishal Agrawal 39,299,074.89 

7 Ram Chandra Shanghai 39,802,754.13 

8 Bashudev Golyan 33,704,090.92 

9 Kavita Shanghai 24,291,026.57 

10 Sushil Gupta 15,260,105.32 

11 Tulsi Ram Agrawal 12,601,019.51 

12 Sanchita Agrawal 12,600,972.39 

13 Nikunj Agrawal 12,013,437.89 

14 Manju Agrawal 12,600,925.39 

Total 410,679,429.76

Payments are made net of taxes and there are 
no other financial transactions with substantial 
shareholders of the company except in the normal 
course of insurance business. 

8.2 Companies whose substantial 
share is hold by the company:
Following are the transactions with companies 
whose substantial shares are hold by the company:

Nepal Reinsurance Co. Ltd.

Re-insurance Premium paid 54,990,180.26

Claim received 13,338,541.50

S. 
No.

Name of the Com-
pany

Particulars

1 Citizen Investment 
Trust

78185 bonus share share for 
FY 2074/75

2 NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 101437 bonus share and 
Rs 10,143,612.20 Dividend 
received For FY 2075/76.

No tax has been deducted in the re-insurance 
premium paid amount as well as claim received 
amount. Required tax has been deducted by the 
concerned company before transferring the bonus 
share. No other financial transactions has been 
made except in the normal course of business with 
above mentioned companies.

8.3 Post-employment benefit plan 
for the benefit of the employees:
The company has contributed to approve 
retirement benefit plan maintained with Citizen 
Investment Trust for its employees. During the 
fiscal year Rs.18,786,572.55 was further contribution 
made to the fund.

Statement of fund:

Particular Amount

Opening balance of Fund 46,633,860.15

Additional to the fund 18,786,572.55

Interest income 3,907,765.82

Payments from the fund 0

Closing balance of Fund 69,328,198.52

8.4 Transaction with key managerial 
personnel (KMP) of the company:
The company has recognised Board of directors 
and Chief executive officer as KMP of the company. 
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8.5 Transaction with Board of directors
Company’s Board of Directors is comprised of 
following personalities:

SN. Name Position

1. Mr. Govind Lal Sanghai Chairman

2. Mr. Ram Avatar Agrawal Director

3. Mr. Kamlesh Kumar Agrawal Director

4. Mr. Prakash Mundada Director

5. Mr. Vivek Agrawal Director

6. Mr. Bimal Prasad Dhakal Director

7. Ms. Parul Dhakal Director

Transactions made with Board of directors of the 
company during the year:

Particular Amount (NRs)

Meeting fees/ Allowances 5,210,000.00

Traveling 1,957,436.00

Allowances 1,260,000.00

Total 8,427,436.00

The directors are entitled to meeting fees on 
attending board and other committee meetings 
as well as monthly allowances. Payments made to 
the directors are net of taxes. There have been no 
financial transactions with close family members 
of the directors except in the normal course of 
insurance business.

8.6 Transaction with Chief Executive 
Officer
Transactions made with Chief Executive Officer of 
the company during the year:

Particular Amount (NRs)

Salary 6,480,000.00

Allowances and other benefits 5,220,000.00

Total 11,700,000.00

Benefits are paid according to employee rules and 
regulations of the company and are included in 
the taxable income. There has been no financial 
transaction with close family members of the CEO 
except in the normal course of insurance business.

9. SEGMENT REPORTING 
The company has disclosed information on 
operating segments to enable users of financial 
statements to evaluate the nature and financial 
effects of the company’s business activities and 
that of the economic environment in which the 
Company operates. 

Identification of reportable segments
The management has identified group of product 
as reportable segments under segment reporting. 
The company has divided into 5 main insurance 
products having own premium, claim, reinsurance, 
service fee and commission expense. Further, 
management expenses are allocated to all the 
segments as per weight provided by Beema Samiti 
for allocation of management expense in GAAP 
financial Statement. Similarly, Other Income is also 
allocated as per ratio provided by Beema Samiti for 
allocation of Income in GAAP financial statement. 
All the other unallocated amounts are separately 
reported under “other unallocated” headings. 
Other Material non-cash items are allocated to 
segments using the same ratio for other income. 
Profit and loss is directly reported under “other 
unallocated” as it cannot be allocated to any 
segment. The tax expenses are not allocated to 
any segments.

Details information on the Company’s operating 
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SN Name of Promoter Shareholders Shares Under 
Pledge

1 AMIT AGRAWAL 137301

2 ANANT KUMAR GOLYAN 323043

3 ANJALI SARAWOGI 65948

4 ANUJ AGARWAL 616670

5 ARPIT AGRAWAL 285000

6 ASHOK KUMAR AGARWAL 127000

7 ASHOK KUMAR AGRAWAL 320000

8 ASHOK KUMAR AGRAWAL 90913

9 BASU DEV GOLYAN 275814

10 BHARAT REGMI 6199

11 BODH PRASAD TRIPATHI 119446

12 CAPTIVE INVESTMENT COMPANY 
PVT.LTD 28772

13 DINESH ARYAL 6390

14 DIPESH BAHADUR DHOUBANZAR 9508

15 DIWAKAR GOLCHHA 65000

16 JAYANT KUMAR AGRAWAL 40590

17 KAVITA SANGHAI 140000

18 KESHAB TULADHAR 5400

19 KUMAR PRASAD OJHA 2198

20 LALIT SARDA 7607

21 MADHUSUDAN AGRAWAL 16736

22 MAHENDRA KUMAR BHIMSARIA 10989

23 MAHESH KUMAR AGRAWAL 28000

24 NAND KISHOR SHARMA 28442

25 NARAYAN PRASAD MUNDARA 322820

26 NARESH KUMAR AGRAWAL 23120

27 NIKUNJ AGRAWAL 131000

28 NIRMAL KUMAR AGRAWAL 27300

29 PAWAN KUMAR GOLYAN 776879

30 PAWAN KUMAR SARIA 6060

31 POONAM GOEL 5704

32 PRADEEP KRISHNA MANANDHAR 3050

33 PRAMILA DEVI AGRAWAL 65954

34 PREM BAHADUR BARAL 9522

35 PRUDENTIAL CAPITAL MANAGE-
MENT COMPANY PVT. LTD 208920

36 PURUSHOTAM LAL SANGHAI 375000

37 RAJ KUMAR BARAL 10992

SN Name of Promoter Shareholders Shares Under 
Pledge

38 RAJ KUMAR MORE 100830

39 RAJENDRA KUMAR AGRAWAL 9500

40 RAM AWATAR AGRAWAL 98594

41 RAM AWATAR AGRAWAL 62758

42 RAMESH KUMAR AGRAWAL 22500

43 RAVI KUMAR AGRAWAL 1775

44 RENU MITTAL 16454

45 ROSHANI MAIYA DHOUBANZAR 9508

46 SAMPURNA DAS TULADHAR 31500

47 SANJAY KUMAR SUREKA 40000

48 SANJEEB KUMAR DAHAL 7757

49 SASHIKANT AGRAWAL 42773

50 SATISH KUMAR MORE 112540

51 SHAKTI KUMAR GOLYAN 365143

52 SHANKAR LAL AGARWAL 263814

53 SHASHI KANT AGARWAL 274161

54 SHIV RATAN AGARWAL 20918

55 SHIVA SHANKAR AGRAWAL 97781

56 SHRAWAN KUMAR MORE 97970

57 SHREE GANESH PROPERTIES 
AND INVESTMENTS 77747

58 SHYAM CHOKHANI 3050

59 SIRISH KUMAR MURARKA 91075

60 SUBHASH CHANDRA SANGHAI 682000

61 SUMITRA SHARMA 10239

62 SURAJ PANDIA 15389

63 SURENDRA KUMAR GOEL 11410

64 SURESH KUMAR AGRAWAL 54880

65 SUSHIL GUPTA 21000

66 SWADESHI SECURITIES & INVEST-
MENT PVT LTD 27855

67 SWETA AGRAWAL 2853

68 UDAYA PRASAD OJHA 87254

69 VIDYA DEVI AGRAWAL 22000

70 VISHAL AGARWAL 16268

71 VISHAL AGRAWAL 626500

72 VIVEK AGARWAL 6086

73 VIVEK AGRAWAL 149670
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